



## **Balranald Shire Council**

**Overarching Asset Management Plan** 

July 2017



#### **Document status**

Ref	Approving director	Date
7238	T McCarthy	July 2017

#### © Morrison Low

Except for all client data and factual information contained herein, this document is the copyright of Morrison Low. All or any part of it may only be used, copied or reproduced for the purpose for which it was originally intended, except where the prior permission to do otherwise has been sought from and granted by Morrison Low. Prospective users are invited to make enquiries of Morrison Low concerning using all or part of this copyright document for purposes other than that for which it was intended.



## Contents

1	Intr	oduction	1
	1.1	Scope of this asset management plan	1
	1.2	Asset planning - background	2
	1.3	Asset management policy	4
	1.4	About asset management	5
	1.5	Balranald Shire Council	7
	1.6	Assets covered by this plan	8
	1.7	Responsibilities for management of assets within Council	9
	1.8	Key stakeholders	10
	1.9	Links to Council plans and strategies	10
	1.10	Legislative requirements	14
2	Lev	els of Service	15
	2.1	Introduction	15
	2.2	Customer research and expectations	15
	2.3	Service level outcomes	15
	2.4	Condition	20
	2.5	Levels of Service	20
3	Futi	ure Demand	21
	3.1	Demand forecast	21
	3.2	Population forecasts	21
	3.3	Changes in technology	21
	3.4	Demand management plan	22
	3.5	Demand management strategies	22
4	Ass	et Management Strategy and Practices	23
	4.1	Asset management systems	23
	4.2	Data collection and validation	23
	4.3	Asset management gap analysis	23
	4.4	Improvement plan	24
	4.5	Asset management strategy	25
	4.6	Monitoring and review procedures	25
5	Risk	K Management Plan	26
	5.1	Critical assets	29
6	Con	nbined Assets Overview	30
	6.1	Combined assets values	30
	6.2	Overall funding strategy	31
	6.3	Summary of asset expenditure	32
	6.4	Asset performance ratios	33

6.5	Asset Consumption Ratio	34
6.6	Asset Sustainability Ratio	34
6.7	Asset Renewal Funding Ratio	34
Appendi	x 1 Road Transport Assets	37
A. 1.1	Asset Inventory	37
A. 1.2	Asset Values	38
A. 1.3	Asset Condition	39
A. 1.4	Asset Based Service Levels	40
A. 1.5	Expenditure Projections	41
A. 1.6	Financial Ratios	43
A. 1.7	Funding Strategy	44
A. 1.8	Main Findings	44
A. 1.9	Confidence Levels	45
Appendi	x 2 Building Assets	46
A. 2.1	Asset Inventory	46
A. 2.2	Asset Values	46
A. 2.3	Asset Condition	48
A. 2.4	Asset Based Service Levels	48
A. 2.5	Expenditure Projections	49
A. 2.6	Financial Ratios	51
A. 2.7	Funding Strategy	53
A. 2.8	Main Findings	53
A. 2.9	Confidence Levels	54
Appendi	x 3 Sewer Assets	55
A. 3.1	Asset Inventory	55
A. 3.2	Asset Values	56
A. 3.3	Asset Condition	57
A. 3.4	Asset Based Service Levels	58
A. 3.5	Expenditure Projections	59
A. 3.6	Financial Ratios	61
A. 3.7	Funding Strategy	62
A. 3.8	Main Findings	62
A. 3.9	Confidence Levels	64
Appendi	x 4 Water Assets	65
A.4.1	Asset Inventory	65
A. 4.2	Asset Values	66
A. 4.3	Asset Condition	67
A. 4.4	Asset Based Service Levels	69
A. 4.5	Expenditure Projections	70
A. 4.6	Financial Ratio	72

A. 4.7 Funding Strategy

A. 4.8	Main Findings	73
A. 4.9	Confidence Levels	74
Appendi	5 Stormwater Assets	75
A. 5.1	Asset Inventory	75
A. 5.2	Asset Values	76
A. 5.3	Asset Condition	77
A. 5.4	Asset Based Service Levels	78
A. 5.5	Expenditure Projections	79
A. 5.6	Financial Ratios	81
A. 5.7	Funding Strategy	82
A. 5.8	Main Findings	82
A. 5.9	Confidence Levels	83
Appendi	6 Open Space and Recreation Assets	84
A. 6.1	Asset Inventory	84
A. 6.2	Asset Values	84
A. 6.3	Asset Condition	84
A. 6.4	Asset Based Service Levels	85
A. 6.5	Expenditure Projections	86
A. 6.6	Financial Ratios	88
A. 6.7	Funding Strategy	89
A. 6.8	Main Findings	89
A. 6.9	Confidence Levels	90
Appendiz	7 Other Assets (Waste)	91
A. 7.1	Asset Inventory	91
A. 7.2	Asset Values	91
A. 7.3	Asset Condition	91
A. 7.4	Asset Based Service Levels	92
A. 7.5	Expenditure Projections	93
A. 7.6	Financial Ratios	95
A. 7.7	Funding Strategy	97
A. 7.8	Main Findings	97
Appendi	8 Asset Management Improvement Plan	98
A. 8.1	Asset Knowledge	98
A. 8.2	Asset Data Processes	100
A. 8.3	Asset Strategy	101
A. 8.4	Asset Operations and Maintenance	102
A. 8.5	Asset Information Systems	103
A. 8.6	Corporate / Organisational Commitment	104
Appendiz	9 IP&R Compliance Checklist	105

73



## Tables

Table 1.1	Asset Management Plan Sections	2
Table 1.2	Key Stakeholders	10
Table 1.3	Asset Linkages to the Community Strategic Plan	11
Table 2.1	Strategies and Service Level Outcomes	17
Table 3.1	Population Projections	21
Table 3.2	Future Demand Impact on Assets	22
Table 5.1	Risk Register for Council's Assets	27

## **Figures**

Figure 1.1	Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework	3
Figure 1.2	Resourcing Strategy Framework	4
Figure 1.3	Asset Management Plan Inputs and Outputs	6
Figure 1.4	Map of Balranald	8
Figure 4.1	Strategic Asset Management Gap Analysis Summary Chart	24
Figure 6.1	Total Asset Composition Based on Current Replacement Cost and Budget Allocation	31



## 1 Introduction

## **1.1** Scope of this asset management plan

This asset management plan has been developed to provide the framework to ensure that Council's infrastructure assets are operated, maintained, renewed and upgraded to guarantee that the Levels of Service are achieved in the most cost effective and sustainable way.

The audience for this asset management plan is Council staff, the Council executive management team, elected representatives (councillors), interest groups, stakeholders and other interested members of the general community.

The specific objectives of this plan are to

- demonstrate responsible and sustainable stewardship of the community assets
- define how Council assets are, and will be, managed to achieve the Levels of Service
- assist the management of the environmental, financial and public risks related to the infrastructure assets
- provide the basis for forward works programs
- provide the basis for optimising whole of life costs
- support long term financial planning.

The plan identifies the future funding requirements and service delivery in the context of

- Levels of Service
- forecast demand for infrastructure and services
- current asset performance
- funding constraints.

The plan supports Council's aim to have the 'best value' asset management strategies and practices by continually developing and improving its knowledge, systems, processes and strategies to ensure Council is providing the level of asset management necessary to competently, responsibly and sustainably manage the community assets now and into the future.

This core asset management plan and strategy is prepared using a top-down approach where analysis is applied at the system or network level. The focus is on current Levels of Service and current practices. It includes expenditure forecasts for asset maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement based on local knowledge of assets and options for meeting current Levels of Service.

Future revisions of this asset management plan and strategy will move towards a more advanced level of asset management using a bottom -up approach for gathering information for individual assets to support the optimisation of activities and programs to meet the Levels of Service. The focus of future plans developed in this manner will include risk and performance optimisation, risk-based strategies, use of predictive methods and optimised decision making techniques.

This plan is based generally on the guidelines outlined in the International Infrastructure Management Manual 2011 incorporating the Sections defined in Table 1.1.



Table 1.1	Asset Management	Plan Sections
	Asset management	

Sections		Guidelines					
1	Introduction	Outline of the purpose and scope of the plan and how the plan relates to other key policies and strategies.					
2	Levels of Service	Outline of Levels of Service and asset performance standards and customer/community expectations and feedback regarding Levels of Service.					
3	Future Demand	Identification of demand trends, factors which may influence demand, forecast changes in demand, impacts and implications of future demand and effects on future planning.					
4	Asset Management Practices	Provision of a comprehensive strategic asset management gap analysis process for asset management.					
5	Risk Management Plan	Provision of an asset-based risk management plan.					
6	Overarching Asset Management Strategy	Provision of a summary of Council's overall asset strategy including asset management policy and identification of critical assets.					
Appendices Individual Asset Data, AM Improvement Plan and Compliance Checklist		Outline of asset information, operations and maintenance and capital planning information and processes, and future directions for the physical management of the assets.					

## 1.2 Asset planning - background

Balranald Shire Council is following the guidelines that accompany the Local Government Amendment (Planning and Reporting) Act 2009 in the development of asset management plans and strategy. Given the size of the Council, the strategy is included as part of an overall asset management documentation. The Act makes the development of asset management plans a mandatory requirement for NSW local governments.

The primary role of assets is to support the delivery of services that deliver Council's long term objectives. As Council's assets age there are increased maintenance, refurbishment and disposal costs that increase the cost of the services that they support. It is currently estimated that Balranald Shire Council has approximately \$162 million of depreciating physical assets.

The current Council planning framework has been revised to align with the legislated planning framework in the Local Government Amendment (Planning and Reporting) Act 2009 and the Integrated Planning and Reporting Guidelines for Local Government in NSW. This plan has been developed in line with the legislated framework and guidelines.

The legislated framework addresses the balance between the resources available against the long term aspirational objectives of Council to ensure that there is not an over-commitment to resources (particularly assets) in the short term.

The Long Term Community Strategic Plan for the Balranald Shire is outlined in 'Balranald Shire Community Strategic Plan 2027' which provides a series of themes for the community, with each driver having a number of strategic outcomes and strategies to achieve the desired outcomes.



The key strategic priorities have been developed and linked to a strategy in the Long Term Community Strategic Plan. These priorities also guide the Four Year Delivery Program. As both the Long Term Community Strategic Plan and the Four Year Delivery Program require community consultation, a strategy has been implemented to ensure that the priorities align with community requirements. Figure 1.1 shows the relationship between the various plans and resourcing strategies.



#### Figure 1.1 Integrated Planning and Reporting Framework

This figure above can be explained simply, as follows:

**Community Strategic Plan** - outlines what the community wants; the objectives of the community and strategies to achieve those objectives.

Resourcing Strategy - details the resources that the Council has.

**Delivery Program/Operational Plan** - shows how Council will use the resources that it has to meet the objectives in the Community Strategic Plan, specifically where Council has been identified as responsible or as a supporting partner in the identified strategies.

**Annual Report** - details the reporting mechanism used by Council to report on those activities, and actions that Council proposed in its delivery program and operational plan.

As part of this planning process, Council has also prepared a resourcing strategy which includes a long term financial plan, a workforce management strategy and asset management policy. This asset management plan and strategy form part of the overall resourcing strategy for Council. The Balranald Shire Community Strategic Plan 2027', the Delivery Program and Operational Plan have informed and been informed by the Resourcing Strategy. Figure 1.2 shows the relationship between the various resourcing strategies.



Figure 1.2 Resourcing Strategy Framework



This asset management strategy establishes a framework to guide the planning, construction, maintenance and operation of the infrastructure necessary to achieve the goals and objectives as set out in Balranald Shire Community Strategic Plan 2027 and the Delivery Plan 2017-2021.

Underpinning the asset management policy is a combined asset management plan and overarching asset management strategy, which covers all Council's infrastructure assets.

## **1.3** Asset management policy

The purpose of this policy is to guide the strategic management of Council's assets to ensure the sustainability, equity and affordability of Council's service delivery for present and future Balranald communities.

This policy applies to all infrastructure assets owned or controlled by Council and forms part of the resourcing strategy which supports the Community Strategic Plan whilst meeting the outcomes of the integrated planning and reporting framework in accordance with the Local Government Act and Division of Local Government's Integrated Planning and Reporting Guidelines.

The objective of the policy is to provide the framework for Council to ensure that assets are provided, maintained and renewed so that they continue to meet the service delivery needs of the community in a way which assists in the achievement of Council's visions and provides the best value to the community.

By the implementation of long term management of its assets, Council will achieve significant benefits, including

- more informed decision making
- improved efficiency
- the ability to plan for the present and future generations
- improved long term financial forecasting and management.



Council needs to ensure that asset management is an integral part of its business cycle, and will

- be consistent with its goals and objectives
- help to manage business risk
- provide tangible benefits
- be integrated with other components of the business
- be sustainable.

The goal of the policy is to ensure adequate provision is made for the long term replacement of major assets by

- ensuring that Council's services and infrastructure are provided in a sustainable manner with the appropriate levels of service to residents, visitors and the environment
- safeguarding Council assets including physical assets and employees by implementing appropriate asset management strategies and appropriate financial resources for those assets
- creating an environment where all Council employees take an integral part in overall management of Council assets by creating and sustaining asset management awareness throughout the organisation by training and development
- meeting legislative requirements for asset management
- ensuring resources and operational capabilities are identified and responsibility for asset management is allocated
- demonstrating transparent and responsible asset management processes that align with demonstrated best practice.

Council's Asset Management Policy was adopted by Council at its meeting held on 26 June 2012 and has been reviewed in February 2017.

A full copy of Council's policy is available on Council's website.

#### **1.4** About asset management

Asset management includes the creation, acquisition, maintenance, operation, renewal or rehabilitation and disposal of assets.

The key elements of infrastructure asset management are

- taking a lifecycle approach
- developing cost-effective management strategies for the long term
- providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance
- understanding and meeting the demands of growth through management and infrastructure investment
- managing risks associated with asset failures
- sustainable use of physical resources
- continuous improvement in asset management practices.

The asset management plan is a tool combining management, financial, engineering and technical practices to ensure that assets are managed and the Levels of Service required by customers are provided at the most economical cost to the community.



There are four broad asset management plan inputs and outputs. See Figure 1.3.

- Processes the processes, analysis and evaluation techniques needed to support effective lifecycle asset management
- Information Systems the information systems to support asset management processes and manipulate data
- **Data** appropriate, accessible and reliable data for manipulation by information systems to produce the outputs required
- Implementation Practices including organisation, commercial, contractual and people issues

Figure 1.3 Asset Management Plan Inputs and Outputs



An organisation with solid asset management practices in place will:

- know what assets it owns or has responsibility or legal liability for
- have these assets recorded in an asset register down to an identifiable level
- understand asset values and depreciation
- know the physical condition and rate of deterioration and remaining life of its assets
- know the likely types of failure modes, and predict when they may occur
- know the right time to maintain, rehabilitate and reconstruct assets and implement relevant maintenance and renewal strategies
- have the ability to analyse alternative treatment options and have the ability to rank the treatment options available
- have the ability to determine the likelihood and consequence (risk) associated with the different failure modes
- have knowledge of asset performance and reliability



- have knowledge of asset utilisation and capacity
- understand and have recorded the current Levels of Service in terms of quantity and quality of service
- understand the future Levels of Service required by customers based on community expectations and consultation and in the context of changing demand
- understand and calculate the long term capital and recurrent expenditure and funding needs to sustain assets and provide future Levels of Service for at least ten years into the future
- develop and approve necessary asset renewal programs and funding to sustain Council assets and required Levels of Service.

The organisation should have uniform processes across the whole organisation for the evaluation of any investment in, and forecasts of, operations and maintenance, renewals and new works. Such processes involve:

- monitoring and reporting on the condition and performance of Council assets against Levels of Service and regulatory requirements
- understanding the demand for new assets and services through planning analysis and customer/community surveys
- linking Council corporate goals to asset investments and works programs by:
  - applying best appropriate life cycle processes and practices
  - acquiring and maintaining necessary data and knowledge
  - storing this data and knowledge in appropriate asset management information systems
  - preparing asset management plans so that the strategy is known to all
  - adopting appropriate and 'best value' commercial tactics.

## **1.5** Balranald Shire Council

Balranald Shire Council is located in the south western district of NSW, approximately 850km south west from Sydney and 450km north of Melbourne. It covers an area of 21,699 square kilometres, making it the fifth largest Shire in the State. The main townships are Balranald (population 1,200) and Euston (population 600), located on the banks of the Murrumbidgee and Murray Rivers respectively. Other localities in the Shire include Kyalite, Oxley, Penarie (Homebush), Hatfield and Claire. The total population of Balranald Shire is just under 2500 persons. Approximately seven percent of the Shire's population is indigenous.



#### Figure 1.4 Map of Balranald



Culturally the Shire is rich in both indigenous and non-indigenous history. Mungo National Park, which is primarily located in the Balranald Shire, has world archaeological significance with evidence of human occupation dating back at least 50,000 years. South-western NSW was settled by Europeans from the late 1840s, and the Shire has important sites of pastoral industry, inland port heritage and colonial built infrastructure.

The economy of the Balranald Shire Council is strongly connected to agriculture, including grains (dryland and irrigated), sheep and cattle. However diversification has occurred to encompass horticulture, viticulture, organic agriculture, tree (fruit and nut), timber harvesting and tourism. The Sturt Highway provides the east west route for flow of goods, services and visitors to the Shire.

#### **1.6** Assets covered by this plan

The following asset groups are covered by this asset management plan and strategy

- Transport assets including
  - roads
  - kerb and gutter
  - footpaths
  - bridges and major culverts



- Building assets including
  - library
  - museum
  - art gallery
  - plant and depot etc.
- Sewer assets including
  - Balranald sewerage
  - Euston sewerage
- Water assets including
  - Balranald water
  - Euston water
- Stormwater assets
- Open space and recreation assets including:
  - parks, gardens and reserves
  - recreational facilities including swimming pools, sporting complex, tennis and netball courts, skate park etc.
- Other assets (waste/other structures)

Full details of the Council's assets are included in the asset class specific section of this plan.

## **1.7** Responsibilities for management of assets within Council

The responsibilities relating to infrastructure assets within Council are as follows:

- Councillors adopt the policy to ensure sufficient resources are applied to manage the assets
- The General Manager has overall responsibility for developing an asset management strategy, plans and procedures and reporting on the status and effectiveness of asset management within Council
- Executive managers are responsible for implementing asset management systems, policies and procedures
- Employees with management or supervisory responsibility are responsible for the management of assets within the area of responsibility, as determined under asset management plans

In the short term, employees will be tasked under implementation plans, and will be responsible for the timely completion of the activities contained within those plans. In the medium term, awareness sessions will be conducted to ensure that employees are familiar with asset management and how it is applied within Balranald Shire Council.



## **1.8** Key stakeholders

Key stakeholders are those groups of people who have an interest in the responsible management of assets. The following list identifies key stakeholders and a description of their role in the management of Council's assets.

Stakeholders	Role
Councillors	<ul> <li>Represent needs of community/stakeholders</li> <li>Allocate resources to meet the organisation's objectives in providing services while managing risks</li> <li>Ensure the organisation is financially sustainable</li> </ul>
General Manager	Overall responsibility for the management of Council's asset network
Community	End users of Council's assets
Council Staff	Managers of Council's asset network
Visitors	End users of Council's asset network
Public Utility Providers	Utilisation of assets for public utilities infrastructure
Emergency Services	End users of Council's asset network
Local and National Business	End users of Council's asset network
State Government	Management and funding source for a range of assets

## **1.9** Links to Council plans and strategies

This asset management plan and strategy has been prepared having regard to the vision, guiding principles and strategic objectives as outlined in 'Balranald Shire' Community Strategic Plan 2027', and is detailed as:

# "To create a better, more vibrant, more resilient and more engaged community, by capitalising upon its human, cultural, environmental and business assets and encouraging a strong sense of civic participation and pride".

Infrastructure assets will play both a direct and an indirect role in the delivery of a number of the key community drivers and Council actions. The table below indicates how Council's assets play a role in the delivery of the key strategies linked to the Community Strategic Plan's pillars and goals.



#### Table 1.3 Asset Linkages to the Community Strategic Plan 2027

Pillars Strategic Objectives S		Strate	egies	Transport	Buildings	Sewer	Water	Stormwater	Open Space & Recreation Assets	Other (Waste)	
Our People	1.1	Create more opportunities for community members to socialise and connect in our community	1.1.1	Expand opportunities for social interaction	$\checkmark$	✓				$\checkmark$	
Our Place	2.1. Promote our community as a lifestyle, work and business destination	Promote our community as a	2.1.3	Towns are safe and inviting for locals and visitors	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>				$\checkmark$	
		2.1.4	Develop a series of communication mediums to promote the benefits of living and working in our community	$\checkmark$	✓				$\checkmark$		
	2.2	Create opportunities to assist community members who are disadvantaged	2.2.2	Plan for an ageing population	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
	2.3	Provide and promote a wide range of lifestyle opportunities and activities, facilities and the environment to provide safe and inviting communities	2.3.1 2.3.3	Plan construct and maintain recreational facilities Create and/or promote events	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓
		3.2 Develop and promote our community as a desirable place to stop, stay and experience the Outback and river environments of South Western NSW	3.2.1	Formulate and implement a Balranald Shire Tourism and Marketing Strategy	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$				$\checkmark$	
Our Economy	3.2 Develop and promote our community as a desirable place to stop, stay and experience the Outback and river environments of South Western NSW		3.2.2	Improve Heritage Park (Discovery Centre Precinct)							
our economy			3.2.3	Develop an eco-trail in the Euston Forest					•	•	
		3.2.4	Improve links between Balranald communities and Mungo and Yanga National Parks			$\checkmark$			$\checkmark$		



Pillars	Strategic Objectives			egies	Transport	Buildings	Sewer	Water	Stormwater	Open Space & Recreation Assets	Other (Waste)
			3.2.7	Implement physical improvements to Market Street	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
	3.3	Lobby and facilitate the community gaining its fair share from regional investment to ensure sustainable provision of appropriate social, cultural and physical infrastructure.	3.3.4	Maximise regional development opportunities	✓	~	~	~	✓	✓	~
Our Culture	4.1	Promote opportunities to acknowledge and celebrate our diverse cultures, heritage, artistic expression, religions and faiths.	4.1.1	Identify, protect and interpret our significant heritage sites		✓				✓	
	5.1	To preserve and enhance our natural environments ensuring they remain sustainable, healthy and clean	5.1.1	Continual focus on reducing our environmental footprint and being environmentally sustainable.	~	✓	✓	✓	<b>√</b>	~	✓
	5.2	Promote key health, community communications and infrastructure improvements	5.2.1	Extend mobile coverage especially in the Hatfield / Claire area and National Parks.	$\checkmark$					$\checkmark$	
Our Infrastructure			5.3.1	Identify and lobby for key transport and road infrastructure improvements	$\checkmark$		✓	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	✓
	5.3	Plan, maintain and develop key transport, energy and community infrastructure.	5.3.2	Provide for more and improved footpaths, bike paths and mobility scooter paved concrete paths	$\checkmark$				$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	
			5.3.3	Identify potential access to new energy technologies and infrastructure	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$



Pillars	Stra	ategic Objectives	Strate	gies	Transport	Buildings	Sewer	Water	Stormwater	Open Space & Recreation Assets	Other (Waste)
			5.3.4	Create more tourism opportunities and offers with the existing aerodrome and other transport facilities	✓	✓				~	✓
			5.3.5	Provide community infrastructure	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
Our Leadership	6.2	Strengthen collaboration and partnerships across all levels of government.	6.2.2	Seek collaborative approaches in both planning and delivery of community services	$\checkmark$	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	<b>√</b>	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	<b>√</b>

This asset management plan also has links with other Council plans and documents including:

- Operational Plan detailed action plan on projects and finances for each particular year. The works identified in the Asset Management Plan form the basis on which operational plans are prepared
- Standards and Policies
- Direct Contributions Plans
- State of the Environment Report
- Plans of Management



## 1.10 Legislative requirements

There are a number of legislative requirements that apply to the management of assets, including but not limited to:

- Local Government Act 1993
- Local Government (General) Regula2tion 1999
- Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979
- Environmental Planning Legislation Amendment Act 2006
- Protection of the Environment Administration Act 1991
- Protection of the Environment Operation Act 1991
- Civil Liability Act 2002
- Environmental Protection Act 1970
- Work, Health and Safety Act and Regulations
- Disability Discrimination legislation including:
- Commonwealth Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (DDA)
- NSW Anti-Discrimination Act 1997
- AS 1428 (Set) 2003 Design for Access and Mobility
- AS/NZS 4360 2004 Risk Management
- Australian Accounting Standards
- Environmentally Hazardous Chemicals Act 1985
- Water Management Act 2000
- Heritage Act 1977
- Crown Lands Act
- Building Code of Australia
- Plus other legislation relating to:
  - Working at Heights
  - Confined Spaces
  - Plant Regulations
  - Manual Handling
  - Noise Regulations
  - Planning Controls
  - Various other Australian Standards



## 2 Levels of Service

## 2.1 Introduction

Level of Service (also service level) can be defined as the service quality for a given activity. Levels of Service are often documented as a commitment to carry out a given action or actions within a specified time frame in response to an event or asset condition data.

Service levels may relate to:

- Reliability of Service
- Quality of Service
- Quantity of Service
- Safety/Risk/Security

The objective of asset management is to enable assets to be managed in such a way that agreed Levels of Service are consistently achieved in the most cost effective manner.

The current Levels of Service are governed by available funding.

Levels of Service that are based on an understanding of customer needs, expectations, preferences and their willingness to pay for any increase in the Levels of Service are required in the future.

## 2.2 Customer research and expectations

Council is planning to apply for a Special Rate Variation which will enable Council to carry out community satisfaction surveys.

## 2.3 Service level outcomes

This asset management plan specifically defines Levels of Service for each asset class. These service levels are defined for the individual asset classes as part of the lifecycle management sections of this plan.

These Levels of Service have been combined to deliver five asset-related service level outcomes. The service level outcomes are:

- Accessibility
- Quality / condition
- Responsiveness
- Customer satisfaction
- Affordability
- Sustainability

Each of the service level outcomes is related directly to the Community Strategic Plan 2027 by the way each asset class helps deliver the services required by the community. These service level outcomes are essential to ensure that the asset portfolio is not only maintained to a satisfactory level but also caters for the future demands of the community whilst balancing the potential risks to the community and the Council. The service level outcomes and how they are related to the assets and Council's strategies are detailed in Table 2.1.



#### Accessibility

To ensure the asset base performs as required it is essential that the asset, no matter which type of asset, is generally available to the community as required. As a service outcome the Council's customers will require assets that are accessible and can be relied upon to deliver the services that are not only expected, but the services that are required.

#### **Quality / Condition**

Asset quality is also very important. In this regard, Council should determine the quality of the assets required for the Shire area. Quality will have more to do with the manner and type of the asset rather than its condition. An asset may be poor in quality yet have a condition which is described as good.

#### Responsiveness

Council will maintain assets in a workman-like manner and be responsive to the needs of the community now and into the future. Whilst this may be difficult in some instances, Council places a high emphasis on customer service and it's responsiveness to customer enquiries. Strategies will be implemented to ensure that Council maintains a high level of customer support.

#### **Customer satisfaction**

Council will continue to provide services to the community in a manner that is efficient and effective. Council will continue to monitor community satisfaction with its current services and strive to improve community satisfaction where possible.

#### Affordability

Council will maintain its infrastructure assets in a cost effective affordable manner in accordance with responsible economic and financial management. In order for Council's assets to assist in meeting the strategic goals and in attaining optimum asset expenditure, Council will need to continually review its current operational strategies and adopt new and proven techniques to ensure that assets are maintained in their current condition.

#### Sustainability

Council will ensure that its assets are maintained in a manner that will ensure the long term financial sustainability of the Shire for current and future generations. This will be achieved by ensuring efficient and effective service delivery and ensuring appropriate funds are allocated to maintain and renew infrastructure assets.

The primary linkages between these service level outcomes and the community strategies are illustrated in the following table.



#### Table 2.1 Strategies and Service Level Outcomes

Pillars	Stra	tegic Objectives	Strategies	Accessibility	Quality / condition	Responsiveness	Customer satisfaction	Affordability	Sustainability
Our People	1.1	Create more opportunities for community members to socialise and connect in our community	1.1.1 Expand opportunities for social interaction	$\checkmark$	✓	$\checkmark$	<b>√</b>	✓	
	2.1 Promote our Community as a		2.1.3 Towns are safe and inviting for locals and visitors		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
		lifestyle, work and business destination	2.1.4 Develop a series of communication mediums to promote the benefits of living and working in our community			$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
Our Place	2.2 Create opportunities to assist community members who are disadvantaged		2.2.2 Plan for an ageing population	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
	2.3	Provide and promote a wide range of lifestyle opportunities and activities, facilities and the environment to provide safe and inviting communities	<ul><li>2.3.1 Plan construct and maintain recreational facilities</li><li>2.3.3 Create and/or promote events</li></ul>	<b>~</b>	<ul> <li>✓</li> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<b>√</b>	<ul> <li>✓</li> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>✓</li> <li>✓</li> </ul>	<b>√</b>
	3.2	Develop and promote our community	3.2.1 Formulate and implement a Balranald Shire Tourism and Marketing Strategy	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$
Our Economy		Develop and promote our community as a desirable place to stop, stay and experience the Outback and river	3.2.2 Improve Heritage Park (Discovery Centre Precinct)		$\checkmark$				$\checkmark$
			<ul><li>3.2.3 Develop an eco-trail in the Euston Forest</li><li>3.2.4 Improve links between Balranald communities and Mungo and Yanga National Parks</li></ul>	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		



Pillars	Stra	tegic Objectives	Strategies	Accessibility	Quality / condition	Responsiveness	Customer satisfaction	Affordability	Sustainability
			3.2.7 Implement physical improvements to Market Street		$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$
	3.3	Lobby and facilitate the community gaining its fair share from regional investment to ensure sustainable provision of appropriate social, cultural and physical infrastructure.	3.3.4 Maximise regional development opportunities	✓	✓			✓	✓
Our Culture	4.1	Promote opportunities to acknowledge and celebrate our diverse cultures, heritage, artistic expression, religions and faiths.	4.1.1 Identify, protect and interpret our significant heritage sites		✓				✓
	5.1	To preserve and enhance our natural environments ensuring they remain sustainable, healthy and clean	5.1.1 Continual focus on reducing our environmental footprint and being environmentally sustainable.		$\checkmark$	<b>√</b>		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
Our Infrastructure	5.2	Promote key health, community communications and infrastructure improvements	5.2.1 Extend mobile coverage especially in the Hatfield / Claire area and National Parks.	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
			5.3.1 Identify and lobby for key transport and road infrastructure improvements	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
	5.3	Plan, maintain and develop key transport, energy and community infractructure	5.3.2 Provide for more and improved footpaths, bike paths and mobility scooter paved concrete paths	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
			5.3.3 Identify potential access to new energy technologies and infrastructure		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$



Pillars	Stra	tegic Objectives	Strategies	Accessibility	Quality / condition	Responsiveness	Customer satisfaction	Affordability	Sustainability
			5.3.4 Create more tourism opportunities and offers with the existing aerodrome and other transport facilities	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
			5.3.5 Provide community infrastructure	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
Our Leadership	6.2	Strengthen collaboration and partnerships across all levels of government	6.2.2 Seek collaborative approaches in both planning and delivery of community services			<b>√</b>	$\checkmark$		



## 2.4 Condition

Condition is a measure of an assets physical condition relative to its condition when first constructed. When rating asset condition, Council uses a scale of 0 - 5, where 0 = new and 5 = totally failed. A copy of a typical condition rating matrix is detailed below.

Condition Rating	Condition	Descriptor	Guide	Residual Life as a % of Total Life	Mean Percentage of Residual Life
1	Excellent	Sound physical condition. Asset likely to perform adequately without major work.	Normal maintenance required	>86	95
2	Good	Acceptable physical condition, minimal short-term risk of failure.	Normal maintenance plus minor repairs required (to 5% or less of the asset)	65 to 85	80
3	Satisfactory	Deterioration evident, failure in the short term unlikely. Minor components need replacement or repair now but asset still functions safely.	Significant maintenance and/or repairs required (to 10 - 20% of the asset)	41 to 64	55
4	Worn	Deterioration of the asset is evident and failure is possible in the short term. No immediate risk to health and safety.	Significant renewal required (to 20 - 40% of the asset)	10 to 40	35
5	Poor	Failed or failure is imminent or there is significant deterioration of the asset. Health and safety hazards exist which present a possible risk to public safety.	Over 50% of the asset requires renewal	<10	5

## 2.5 Levels of Service

The Levels of Service for each asset class have been developed based on current work practices and performance. They take into account current data collection and monitoring practices and reflect the service level outcome categories. Current service levels are detailed in the individual asset sections located in the appendices of this plan.



## 3 Future Demand

## **3.1** Demand forecast

The future infrastructure demand for community infrastructure and facilities is driven by changes and trends in

- population growth/reduction
- changes in the demography of the community
- lifestyle changes
- residential occupancy levels
- commercial/industrial demand
- technological changes which impact the asset
- the economic situation
- government policy
- environmental.

#### **3.2 Population forecasts**

The estimated current and forecast resident population of Balranald Shire from the New South Wales local area population projections is shown in the table below.

Area			Forecast year						
	2011	2016	2021	2026	2031	2036	Total change		
<b>Riverina Cities</b>	275,472	283,673	295,469	308,291	320,967	333,994	+58,522		
Balranald Council area	2,372	2,332	2,333	2,333	2,336	2,339	-34		

#### Table 3.1 Population Projections

The population of the Balranald Shire is expected to decline slowly over the next twenty years. Recent population modelling predicts a decrease of approximately 34 persons between 2011 and 2036.

## 3.3 Changes in technology

Technology changes may affect the delivery of infrastructure services as a result of improvements to construction materials and methods. These may potentially increase the life of some assets and reduce susceptibility to damage.



## 3.4 Demand management plan

The following general implications and impacts are predicted on the Council assets, based upon changes and trends are shown in Table 3.2.

Demand Factor	Impact on Services
Population	Population growth will typically place an increased demand on assets, especially libraries and community centres; however population is estimated to remain static for the period of the plan and will not be a driving factor in planning for new assets
Demographics	The trend towards an increasing and older population will place an increased demand on some assets, especially aged care facilities, community centres and recreation assets
Social/Economic	Not directly applicable
Transportation Changes	Not directly applicable
Increasing Costs	Requirement to continue to maximise service delivery within the funding limitations
Environment and Climate	Some assets may be impacted by change such as more severe weather events
Lifestyle	Will impact on the type and size of facilities provided into the future
Technology	May require improved environmental management of facilities

Table 3.2	Future	Demand	Impact	on	Assets
				• • • •	

#### 3.5 Demand management strategies

A formal demand management plan does not currently exist and is not required. Increases in demand for asset-based services will not be driven by population increases but more by changing demographics of the population. Council will continue to monitor the changing population and adapt and modify services as appropriate to the existing community needs.

Council has a strategy for the development and expansion for the towns of Balranald and Euston and plans to take advantage of the proximity to Mildura to drive localised growth.



## 4 Asset Management Strategy and Practices

#### 4.1 Asset management systems

Currently, Council has no formalised asset management system. All asset data for depreciation purposes is stored in the Council's financial system. The asset registers for asset management purposes are maintained in a series of standalone spreadsheets maintained by the individual asset managers. It is recommended that, to improve the asset management improvement program, a single corporate asset register be established.

## 4.2 Data collection and validation

In the preparation of this asset management plan and strategy, Council has used the most current and up to date information that it has available. This information will be required to be updated on a regular basis. Council currently has a semi-formal approach to the collection of asset condition data. In some asset classes such as sewerage there is a process for ongoing CCTV pipe inspections; in other asset classes data is updated on a regular basis however the process is not fully documented.

As part of the asset management improvement plan it is proposed that these matters be addressed on an ongoing basis.

## 4.3 Asset management gap analysis

An asset management gap analysis process has been undertaken for Council's assets as part of the NSW Division of Local Government Infrastructure Audit.

The gap analysis process included an

- assessment of current asset management practice against various desired asset management criteria and elements (generally assessment made considering frequency, emphasis, formality, systems and results)
- assessment of desired/target asset management practice to be achieved within the target timeframe against various best practice asset management criteria and elements (generally assessment made considering frequency, emphasis, formality, systems and results)
- identification of the gap between current asset management practice and desired/target asset management practice.

The results of the gap analysis are shown in Figure 4.1 below.

The audit results for Balranald indicate a low level of compliance with asset management practices within the organisation. This result is typically of a small size of the organisation that has adopted a practical day to day approach to the management of its assets. Typically, Balranald has many of the core aspects of asset management however these are not well documented and typically not carried out in a strategic manner.



Balranald Council	Current Score	Desired score 3yrs	Priority (1-3)	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
			1									1	1
Asset Knowledge / Data	4.0	8.0											
Asset Classification/ Hierarchy	6												
Attributes and Location	2												
Condition Data	3												
Lifecycle Cost Data	4												
Valuation, Depreciation and Age/Life Data	5												
Assat Knowledge Processor	6.0	8.0											
Asset Accounting/Valuation	6.0	8.0											
	0												
Strategic Asset Planning Processes	4.0	8.0											
Strategic Long Term Plan	4												
Asset Management Policy and Strategy	6												
Levels of Service	4												
Risk Management	3												
Financial Planning and Capital Investment	2												
Asset Management Plans	6												
												Ī	T
Operations and Maintenance Work Practices	3.0	8.0											
Operations / Maintenance Management	4												
Critical Assets	1												
Information Systems	3.0	8.0											
Asset Register	3												
Systems Integration	3												
	1	1											-
Organisation Context	2.0	8.0											
Organisational Strategy	2								<u> </u>				
Asset Management Review/Improvement	3												
AM Roles and Responsibilities	2												

#### Figure 4.1 Strategic Asset Management Gap Analysis Summary Chart

## 4.4 Improvement plan

As part of an ongoing commitment to asset management within the organisation, each asset class has a number of improvement tasks which have been prioritised, and as each task is actioned, Council's capability and capacity for improved management of assets will be enhanced. Below are the high priority actions which will lead to improved management of Council's assets as a whole. The full asset management improvement program is detailed in Appendix 8.



## 4.5 Asset management strategy

The Asset Management Strategy is to enable Council to show:

- how its asset portfolio will meet the service delivery needs of its community into the future
- enable Council's Asset Management Policy to be achieved
- ensure the integration of Council's asset management with its Long Term Strategic Plan.

The overarching Asset Management Strategy proposes the following strategies to enable the objectives of the Community Strategic Plan to be achieved.

No	Strategy	Desired Outcome
1	Continue the move from annual budgeting to long term financial planning	The long term implications of Council services are considered in annual budget deliberations
2	Further develop and review the Long Term Financial Plan covering ten years incorporating asset management plan expenditure projections with a sustainable funding position outcome	Sustainable funding model to provide Council services
3	Incorporate Year 1 of Long Term Financial Plan revenue and expenditure projections into annual budgets	Long term financial planning drives budget deliberations
4	Review and update asset management plan financial projections and long term financial plans after adoption of annual budgets. Communicate any consequence of funding decisions on service levels and service risks	Council and the community are aware of changes to service levels and costs arising from budget decisions
5	Report Council's financial position at Fair Value in accordance with Australian accounting standards, financial sustainability and performance against strategic objectives in annual reports	Financial sustainability information is available for Council and the community
5	Ensure Council's decisions are made from accurate and current information in asset registers, on service level performance and costs and 'whole of life' costs	Improved decision making and greater value for money
7	Report on Council's resources and operational capability to deliver the services needed by the community in the Annual Report	Services delivery is matched to available resources and operational capabilities
8	Ensure responsibilities for asset management are identified and incorporated into staff position descriptions	Responsibility for asset management is defined
9	Implement an Improvement Plan to realise 'core' maturity for the financial and asset management competencies.	Improved financial and asset management capacity within Council
10	Report annually to Council on development and implementation of asset management strategy and plan and long term financial plans	Oversight of resource allocation and performance

## 4.6 Monitoring and review procedures

The executive management team will consider a summary report on the progress against the asset management improvement plan on a regular basis and will prepare a detailed report on progress against the plan on an annual basis at the end of each financial year and present it to Council.



## 5 Risk Management Plan

Risk management is defined in AS/NZS 4360:2004 as: "the culture, processes and structures that are directed towards realising potential opportunities whilst managing adverse effects".

A high level risk assessment process to identify risks and to outline a plan to address the risks relating to assets was undertaken in November 2013. The risk assessment process was carried out generally in accordance with Australian Standard for Risk Management AS/NZS 4360:2004.

The risk assessment process identified and evaluated community and service risks that may impact on the community and delivery of services and developed a risk treatment plan.

Critical assets have been identified by utilising the day to day operational knowledge and technical skills of Council staff to identify critical assets in each asset category. Critical assets have been highlighted in the overarching asset management strategy.

Currently no risk mitigation strategies have been developed for critical assets. More work is required in terms of business continuity planning in relation to these assets. It is understood that these matters will be addressed over the next twelve months.

In addition to the community and service risks identified in the risk register, there are a number of risks associated with the management of the assets. These strategic risks are identified in Table 5.1.



#### Table 5.1Risk Register for Council's Assets

#### Risk Categories: VH = very high, H = high, M = medium, L = low

						Asset G	Group A	Affected				ate	Actions Needed
Risk Details / Event	Likelihood	Consequence	Risk	Transport	Sewage	Water	Stormwater	Open Space and Rec	Other (Waste)	Buildings	Existing Controls	Controls Adequ	Actions Needed
Poor design / construction causes damage or injury	Possible	Major	н	~	~	~	~	~	~	~	Designs prepared and construction projects supervised by suitably qualified and experienced people	Y	<ul> <li>Adopt more rigorous <i>Design Office Approach</i></li> <li>to ensure standards are achieved for design and documentation.</li> <li>Implement improved <i>Project Management</i></li> <li><i>Approach</i> and establish mechanisms for better</li> <li>liaison between designers and constructors.</li> <li>Better communications between design and construction staff required.</li> </ul>
Damage caused by vandalism including graffiti	Possible	Moderate	Μ	✓	✓			✓		✓	Efforts are made to design and construct works to reduce susceptibility to damage Council arranges removal of graffiti from its assets	Y	
Overall condition of assets decreases due to inadequate renewal and maintenance programs	Likely	Moderate	н	✓	✓	✓	~	✓	~	~	Programs controlled by budget availability	Ν	Establish clear management plans, with forecast costs, to maintain Levels of Service and debate with Council.
Changes in legislation affect the responsibilities of Council	Unlikely	Moderate	L	~	~	$\checkmark$	1	~	~	1	Monitor legislative changes	Y	Continue to monitor legislative changes.



					1	Asset G	roup A	ffected	I			ate	
Risk Details / Event	Likelihood	Consequence	Risk	Transport	Sewage	Water	Stormwater	Open Space and Rec	Other (Waste)	Buildings	Existing Controls	Controls Adequ	Actions Needed
Resource constraints affect the management of the assets	Possible	Major	н	~	✓	~	~	~	✓	✓	None	N	Monitor staff turnover and maximise staff retention.
Unforeseen increases in fuel, plant and materials costs	Likely	Moderate	н	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	Costs are monitored	Y	Continue to monitor costs.
Failure of materials supplies	Possible	Major	н	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	None	N	Ensure alternative supply arrangements are in place for critical materials.
Flooding	Possible	Major	н	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		✓	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$	Flood management plans being prepared	Y	Implement flood management program.
Impact of climate change on assets	Possible	Major	н	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$	None	N	Prepare climate change plans and programs targeting asset management.



## 5.1 Critical assets

Council has not undertaken any detailed analysis of critical assets, however based on the skills and knowledge of Council's operational and technical staff, Council has identified its critical assets as following:

- Balranald and Euston Water Treatment Plant
- Balranald and Euston Reservoirs, including intake structures
- Main Sewerage Pump Stations
- Councils Administration Centre

The emergency response plan for these assets is currently in development.



## 6 Combined Assets Overview

#### 6.1 Combined assets values






## 6.2 Overall funding strategy

Council's overall funding strategy is to align and to match the asset value and asset expenditure. Asset groups that are generally larger carry a greater replacement cost, have higher usage and importance and are allocated more funding than those from a smaller group.





Figure 6.1 above shows asset composition based on current replacement cost and 2017/18 budget allocation. As indicated, Council expenditure is typically based on the asset groups that carry large replacement cost and high significance. In addition, Council monitors asset requirements regularly and allocates budget accordingly.

## 6.3 Summary of asset expenditure

Council's total ten year expenditure budget on its infrastructure assets is reasonable with estimated shortfall of \$1.1 million. The table below provides a summary of Council's ten year expenditure of all assets.

Expenditure Summary	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	10 Year Total
Actual											
Renewal	\$3,503	\$3,186	\$3,221	\$3,127	\$3,619	\$2,888	\$3,004	\$2,526	\$2,282	\$2,782	\$30,137
New and Expanded Assets	\$876	\$784	\$799	\$804	\$819	\$824	\$840	\$845	\$861	\$867	\$8,318
Operational	\$565	\$577	\$589	\$602	\$614	\$627	\$640	\$654	\$668	\$682	\$6,219
Maintenance	\$1,943	\$1,967	\$1,997	\$2,024	\$2,054	\$2,080	\$2,112	\$2,128	\$2,161	\$2,193	\$20,658
Total Expenditure	\$6,887	\$6,514	\$6,605	\$6,557	\$7,106	\$6,419	\$6,596	\$6,153	\$5,971	\$6,524	\$65,332
Required											
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$2,895	\$2,968	\$3,042	\$3,118	\$3,195	\$3,275	\$3,356	\$3,439	\$3,524	\$3,611	\$32,422
New and Expanded Assets	\$876	\$784	\$799	\$804	\$819	\$824	\$840	\$845	\$861	\$867	\$8,318
Required O&M	\$3,363	\$3,466	\$3,569	\$3,676	\$3,785	\$3,897	\$4,012	\$4,130	\$4,252	\$4,376	\$38,526
Total	\$7,133	\$7,218	\$7,410	\$7,597	\$7,799	\$7,996	\$8,208	\$8,414	\$8,636	\$8,853	\$79,266
Overall (GAP)	(\$246)	(\$704)	(\$805)	(\$1,041)	(\$693)	(\$1,577)	(\$1,612)	(\$2,261)	(\$2,665)	(\$2,330)	(\$13,934)

Excluding water and sewer assets from the expenditure calculations due to their separate budgets slightly increases this shortfall by \$0.7 million.

Expenditure Summary	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	10 Year Total
Actual											
Renewal	\$2,471	\$2,126	\$2,554	\$2,487	\$3,112	\$2,611	\$2,590	\$2,324	\$2,078	\$2,573	\$24,925
New and Expanded Assets	\$876	\$784	\$799	\$804	\$819	\$824	\$840	\$845	\$861	\$867	\$8,318
Operational	\$400	\$409	\$417	\$426	\$434	\$443	\$452	\$462	\$471	\$481	\$4,395
Maintenance	\$1,508	\$1,522	\$1,542	\$1,560	\$1,580	\$1,595	\$1,616	\$1,622	\$1,643	\$1,664	\$15,854
Total Expenditure	\$4,379	\$4,057	\$4,513	\$4,472	\$5,125	\$4,649	\$4,659	\$4,408	\$4,193	\$4,718	\$53,491
Required											
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$2,530	\$2,595	\$2,661	\$2,728	\$2,797	\$2,868	\$2,940	\$3,014	\$3,089	\$3,167	\$28,389
New and Expanded Assets	\$876	\$784	\$799	\$804	\$819	\$824	\$840	\$845	\$861	\$867	\$8,318
Required O&M	\$2,846	\$2,937	\$3,029	\$3,124	\$3,221	\$3,321	\$3,423	\$3,528	\$3,636	\$3,747	\$32,813
Total	\$6,251	\$6,317	\$6,489	\$6,656	\$6,837	\$7,013	\$7,203	\$7,387	\$7,587	\$7,781	\$69,520
Overall (GAP)	(\$1,872)	(\$2,259)	(\$1,976)	(\$2,184)	(\$1,712)	(\$2,364)	(\$2,544)	(\$2,980)	(\$3,394)	(\$3,062)	(\$16,029)

#### 6.4 Asset performance ratios

An effective way of assessing performance of an asset is through measuring its performance ratios. Asset consumption ratio, asset sustainability ratio and asset renewal ratio are the three typical asset ratios that are used in this asset management plan to measure asset based service levels for the seven asset categories.

## 6.5 Asset Consumption Ratio

The average proportion of 'as new' condition remaining for assets. This ratio shows the written down current value of the local government's depreciable assets relative to their 'as new' value. It highlights the aged condition of a local government's stock of physical assets and the potential magnitude of capital outlays required in future to preserve their service potential.

## 6.6 Asset Sustainability Ratio

Are assets being replaced at the rate they are wearing out? This ratio indicates whether a local government is renewing or replacing existing non-financial assets at the same rate that its overall stock of assets is wearing out. It is calculated by measuring capital expenditure on renewal or replacement of assets relative to the rate of depreciation of assets for the same period. A local government would need to understand and be measuring its renewal expenditure to be able to determine this ratio.

## 6.7 Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

Is there sufficient future funding for renewal and replacement of assets? This ratio indicates whether Council is allocating sufficient funds aside in its long term financial plan to adequately fund asset renewals.

These are calculated for each asset category under the asset based service level in the appendices. However, we have provided an overall picture of Council's asset portfolio by charting the asset renewals and maintenance funding, as well as the asset consumption ratio for the general fund assets (excludes water and sewerage) and the total asset portfolio.



















# Appendix 1 Road Transport Assets

#### A. 1.1 Asset Inventory

The Council's road transport assets consist of the following assets:

Sub Group	Asset Class	No	Unit
Regional Roads	Gravel Regional	14.9	km
	Regional unsealed	28.4	km
	Regional sealed	245.5	km
Roads Sealed	Sealed carpark	1.6	km
	Sealed local tourist	40.1	km
	Sealed local	73.2	km
	Sealed local access	2.2	km
	Sealed local arterial	3.8	km
Roads Unsealed	Unsealed local	221.6	km
	Unsealed local access	346.9	km
	Unsealed local arterial	241	km
	Unsealed local tourist	159	km
Formed	Formed local	73.3	km
	Formed local access	82.6	km
	Formed Local Fire Access	20.9	km
Kerb and Gutter		60.7	km
Footpaths		10.1	Km
Bridges and Major Culverts		3	No

In summary, Council has 1,554km of roads as part of its road network including three bridges and major culverts, 61 km of kerb and gutter and 10 km of footpaths.

#### A. 1.2 Asset Values

Sub Group	No	Unit	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
Roads Sealed	120.9	km	\$71,830,239	\$59,201,584
Road Formed	176.8	km	\$12,132,888	\$4,830,633
Road Unsealed	968	km	\$4,127,263	\$926,305
Kerb and Gutter	60.7	km	\$5,668,260	\$3,299,318
Footpaths	10.1	Km	\$1,619,784	\$911,049
Bridges and Major Culverts	3	No	\$2,392,280	\$1,196,205
Total			\$97,770,714	\$70,365,094

# Transport Assets breakdown by % of Current Replacement Cost



#### A. 1.3 Asset Condition

Sub Group	Class			Condition Data (Counts)	)	
		1	2	3	4	5
Roads	Formed local			14%	86%	
	Formed local access	9%	14%	32%	41%	
	Formed local fire access			100%		
	Gravel regional			100%		
	Sealed carpark	80%	20%			
	Sealed local	60%	38%		2%	
	Sealed local access	100%				
	Sealed local arterial	100%				
	Sealed local tourist	93%			7%	
	Sealed regional	100%				
	Unsealed local	14%	4%	56%	21%	4%
	Unsealed local	12%	88%			
	Unsealed local access	7%	19%	22%	48%	3%
	Unsealed local arterial	51%	19%	11%	13%	3%
	Unsealed local tourist	2%	7%	50%	39%	2%
	unsealed regional			100%		
Kerb and Gutter		30%	43%	23%	4%	
Footpaths		21%	74%	5%		

#### A. 1.4 Asset Based Service Levels

Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service	Performance Measurement Process	Target Performance	Current Performance
Quality / condition	Percent of assets in condition 3 or better	Condition assessment	95% for all assets	Roads - 74% Kerb and gutter - 95% Footpath – 100% Bridges and major culverts – 100%
Reliability / responsiveness	Precent compliance with Council's documented response time	CRMS data	90%	NA
Customer Service	Percent satisfaction with service provision	Community satisfaction report	Satisfaction rating	NA
	Consumption ratio	Annual depreciation figures and	Between 50% and 75%	63%
Sustainability	Renewal funding ratio	expenditure details	Between 90% and 110%	133%
	Long term funding ratio		Between 95% and 105%	121%
Safety	Percent reduction in total crashes accidents in a three year rolling average	RMS Accident statistics	Ten in two years	NA
Affordability	Maintenance and operational cost per km of road	Annual budget expenditure	Increase by 1% lower than CPI	NA

#### **Asset Consumption Ratio**

The average proportion of 'as new' condition remaining for assets. This ratio shows the written down current value of the local government's depreciable assets relative to their 'as new' value. It highlights the aged condition of a local government's stock of physical assets and the potential magnitude of capital outlays required in future to preserve their service potential

#### Asset Sustainability Ratio

Are assets being replaced at the rate they are wearing out? This ratio indicates whether a local government is renewing or replacing existing non-financial assets at the same rate that its overall stock of assets is wearing out. It is calculated by measuring capital expenditure on renewal or replacement of assets relative to the rate of depreciation of assets for the same period. A local government would need to understand and be measuring its renewal expenditure to be able to determine this ratio.

#### Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

Is there sufficient future funding for renewal and replacement of assets? This ratio indicates whether Council is allocating sufficient funds aside in its long term financial plan to adequately fund asset renewals.

## A. 1.5 Expenditure Projections

10 year Budget	Budget	Projected								
Forecast	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Actual										
Renewal	\$2,452	\$2,107	\$2,534	\$2,467	\$3,091	\$2,590	\$2,568	\$2,302	\$2,055	\$2,550
New and Expanded Assets	\$704	\$608	\$619	\$620	\$631	\$632	\$644	\$645	\$656	\$657
Operational	\$240	\$245	\$249	\$254	\$259	\$264	\$270	\$275	\$280	\$286
Maintenance	\$1,129	\$1,135	\$1,147	\$1,156	\$1,167	\$1,173	\$1,185	\$1,181	\$1,193	\$1,204
Total Expenditure	\$4,525	\$4,095	\$4,549	\$4,497	\$5,148	\$4,659	\$4,667	\$4,403	\$4,185	\$4,697
Required										
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$1,565	\$1,607	\$1,649	\$1,692	\$1,736	\$1,781	\$1,828	\$1,875	\$1,923	\$1,973
New and Expanded Assets	\$704	\$608	\$619	\$620	\$631	\$632	\$644	\$645	\$656	\$657
Required O&M	\$1,955	\$2,013	\$2,069	\$2,127	\$2,186	\$2,247	\$2,309	\$2,373	\$2,438	\$2,504
Total	\$4,224	\$4,228	\$4,337	\$4,439	\$4,554	\$4,661	\$4,780	\$4,892	\$5,017	\$5,134
Overall (GAP)	\$301	(\$132)	\$212	\$58	\$595	(\$1)	(\$113)	(\$489)	(\$832)	(\$437)







#### A. 1.6 Financial Ratios









### A. 1.7 Funding Strategy

Funding of operations and maintenance is from Council's general fund, supplemented by federal and state government grants, where available.

Restoration work on assets required as a result of work on the asset by another organisation is undertaken when fully funded by that organisation.

Funding of new works is by Council general funds as agreed by Council, supplemented by federal and state government grants where available and via Section 94 Development contributions where applicable.

#### A. 1.8 Main Findings

Over a long period of time, Balranald Shire Council has shown that the integrity of its road network is essential to the ongoing development and future of the Shire. As reflected in the projected financial ratio graphs, Council's immediate expenditure strategy is to spend money on the renewals to decrease the backlog. A higher (above 100%) renewals ratio reflects that Council has a priority to reduce the backlog. Although this approach falls under good practice, it is recommended that after year 2018/19, Council uses the excessive renewals budget towards maintenance. A backlog of 2% is considered healthy and, as such, Council does not need to continue the higher funding towards the renewals once it reaches 2%. Transferring these extra funds towards maintenance will improve Council's overall maintenance ratio, reduce the required versus actual maintenance gap, as well as prevent assets in good condition from deteriorating.

Overall, the road transport network condition appears to be in good condition with minimal assets in condition 4 and 5. This indicates that the expenditure on road renewal is being reflected in the ongoing asset condition.



#### A. 1.9 Confidence Levels

The confidence in the asset data used as a basis for the financial forecasts has been assessed using the following grading system, see the table below

Confidence Grade	General Meaning
Highly Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedure, investigations, and analysis that is properly documented and recognised as the best method of assessment
Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is properly documented but has minor shortcomings; for example the data is old, some documentation is missing and reliance is placed on unconfirmed reports or some extrapolation
Uncertain	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is incomplete or unsupported or extrapolation from a limited sample
Very Uncertain	Data based on unconfirmed verbal reports and/or cursory inspection and analysis

The overall confidence level of the plan is considered to be *Reliable*.



# Appendix 2 Building Assets

## A. 2.1 Asset Inventory

Asset Class	No		
Administration and Operational	6	\$2,921,050	\$1,502,000
Aged Care	1	\$366,600	\$164,000
Community Facilities	20	\$16,885,629	\$7,514,500
Dwelling	8	\$4,534,450	\$3,149,000
Toilet Block	2	\$640,690	\$241,000
Grand Total	37	\$25,348,419	\$12,570,500

## A. 2.2 Asset Values

Buildings	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
Doctor's Residence	\$368,000	\$205,000
Greenham Park Sporting Complex	\$3,640,000	\$1,629,000
Caravan Park	\$1,402,624	\$743,000
Employee Residence	\$293,000	\$190,000
Preschool and Childcare Centre 136 Harben Street	\$899,775	\$538,000
Family Refuge/ SES Base	\$48,950	\$46,000
Car Parking Space Behind Elders	\$0	\$30,000
Library and CWA buildings	\$614,945	\$243,000
Senior Citizens	\$366,600	\$164,000
Dental Clinic/Baby Health Reserve	\$540,500	\$184,000
Council Chambers and Office	\$1,364,000	\$586,000
Employee Residence	\$274,000	\$195,000
Employee Residence	\$284,000	\$175,000
Employee Residence	\$201,000	\$110,000
Pump Station 3	\$0	\$2,000



Buildings	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
Heritage Park - Old Goal and Hut	\$393,360	\$134,000
Employee Residence	\$265,000	\$200,000
Pump station 1 - Lions Park	\$0	\$2,000
Golf Club	\$1,097,475	\$291,000
Museum and Men's Shed	\$532,300	\$156,000
Independent Living Units 'Mandoola'	\$814,350	\$682,000
Theatre Royal	\$3,036,200	\$1,054,000
Lions Park	\$101,840	\$51,000
Balranald Works Depot Reserve Trust 82480	\$1,274,750	\$659,000
Hostel 'Bidgee Haven'	\$2,212,100	\$1,549,000
Balranald Waste Disposal Depot	\$93,200	\$86,000
Sewerage Treatment Plant and Easement	\$60,000	\$60,000
2604771 Aerodrome	\$2,278,500	\$954,000
2605827 Caltex Service Station	\$0	\$100,000
2605827 Caretakers Residence	\$191,000	\$48,000
2605202 Art Gallery	\$435,200	\$272,000
2604985 Vacant Land	\$0	\$12,500
Euston Preschool And Toilet	\$538,850	\$190,000
Euston Works Depot Reserve	\$79,100	\$34,000
Euston Recreational Ground	\$1,096,500	\$775,000
Euston Court House	\$501,300	\$144,000
Euston Sewerage Treatment	\$50,000	\$77,000
Total	\$25,348,419	\$12,570,500

#### A. 2.3 Asset Condition

Class	No			Condition Data (% l	oy Value)		
		1	2	3	4	5	NA
Toilet Blocks	2			100%			
Admin and Operational	6			96%			4%
Community Facilities	20		25%	63%	10%	2%	
Dwellings	8		73%	27%			
Aged Care – Residential and self-care	1			100			
Total	37		30%	62%	6%	2%	0%

## A. 2.4 Asset Based Service Levels

Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service	Performance Measurement Process	Target Performance	Current Performance
Quality / Condition	Reduction in number of defects	Annual inspection	Maintain defect at less than 10%	NA
Quality / Condition	Percent of assets in Condition 3 or better	Condition Assessment	95%	59%
Reliability / responsiveness	Percent compliance with Council's documented response time	CRMS data	90%	NA
Customer Service	Percent satisfaction with service provision	Community satisfaction report	Maintain 80% satisfaction	NA
	Occupation rate for residential and aged care units	Council records	90%	NA
Sustainability	Consumption ratio		Between 50% and 75%	50%
Sustainability	Renewal Funding Ratio	Annual depreciation figures and expenditure details	Between 90% and 110%	0%
	Long term funding ratio		Between 95% and 105%	0%



Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service	Performance Measurement Process	Target Performance	Current Performance
Safety	Compliance with Fire Safety regulation.	Annual Inspection	100% compliance	NA
	Electrical isolation switches operational	Annual Inspections of all residential properties	100% compliance	NA
Affordability	% by value of properties not managed by Council	Annual reports	Maintain	NA

## A. 2.5 Expenditure Projections

10 year Budget	Budget	Projected								
Forecast	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Actual										
Renewal	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
New and Expanded Assets	\$28	\$29	\$29	\$30	\$31	\$31	\$32	\$33	\$33	\$34
Operational	\$49	\$50	\$51	\$52	\$53	\$55	\$56	\$57	\$58	\$60
Maintenance	\$88	\$90	\$92	\$94	\$96	\$98	\$100	\$102	\$105	\$107
Total Expenditure	\$165	\$169	\$172	\$176	\$180	\$184	\$188	\$192	\$196	\$201
Required										
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$691	\$707	\$722	\$739	\$755	\$772	\$789	\$807	\$825	\$844
New and Expanded Assets	\$28	\$29	\$29	\$30	\$31	\$31	\$32	\$33	\$33	\$34
Required O&M	\$507	\$519	\$531	\$543	\$555	\$568	\$581	\$595	\$609	\$623
Total	\$1,226	\$1,254	\$1,282	\$1,311	\$1,341	\$1,372	\$1,403	\$1,435	\$1,467	\$1,501
Overall (GAP)	(\$1,061)	(\$1,085)	(\$1,110)	(\$1,135)	(\$1,161)	(\$1,188)	(\$1,215)	(\$1,242)	(\$1,271)	(\$1,300)





#### A. 2.6 Financial Ratios









#### A. 2.7 Funding Strategy

Funding of operations and maintenance is from Council's general fund, supplemented by federal and state government grants where available.

Restoration / renewal work on some building assets are carried out and funded by community based groups and not accounted for in Council's financial system.

Funding of new works is by Council's general funds as agreed by Council and supplemented by federal and state government grants where available.

#### A. 2.8 Main Findings

It is acknowledged that Council has most building assets in 'good' condition', however Council needs to invest further money into the ongoing renewal of the building assets to maintain asset sustainability. This is reflected in the low building renewal funding ratios and maintenance ratio over the period of the plan. It is recognised that part of Council's ongoing strategy for the maintenance of buildings is to have facilities managed, where possible, by community groups or the lessee or licensee of the facility. In many cases these users undertake ongoing asset renewal works without directly reporting to Council. This expenditure is not captured in Council's accounts.

The shortfall in the maintenance and renewal suggest there is an overall funding gap for the building assets over the period of the plan. This is shown in the table below.

Expenditure Gap	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	10 Year Total
Renewal	(\$691)	(\$707)	(\$722)	(\$739)	(\$755)	(\$772)	(\$789)	(\$807)	(\$825)	(\$844)	(\$7,651)
0&M	(\$370)	(\$379)	(\$388)	(\$397)	(\$406)	(\$416)	(\$425)	(\$435)	(\$446)	(\$456)	(\$4,117)
Total Gap	(\$1,061)	(\$1,085)	(\$1,110)	(\$1,135)	(\$1,161)	(\$1,188)	(\$1,215)	(\$1,242)	(\$1,271)	(\$1,300)	(\$11,768)



#### A. 2.9 Confidence Levels

The confidence in the asset data used as a basis for the financial forecasts has been assessed using the following grading system. See the table below.

Confidence Grade	General Meaning
Highly Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedure, investigations, and analysis that is properly documented and recognised as the best method of assessment
Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is properly documented but has minor shortcomings; for example the data is old, some documentation is missing and reliance is placed on unconfirmed reports or some extrapolation
Uncertain	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is incomplete or unsupported or extrapolation from a limited sample
Very Uncertain	Data based on unconfirmed verbal reports and/or cursory inspection and analysis

The overall confidence level of the plan is considered to be *Reliable*.



# Appendix 3 Sewer Assets

#### A. 3.1 Asset Inventory

Sub Group	Asset Class	No	Unit
Balranald Sewerage	Rising Mains	5	No
	Sewer Mains	384	No
	Sewer Mains Lining	384	No
Euston Sewerage	Euston Rising Main 100	1	No
	Euston Rising Main 80	1	No
	Rising Mains	3	No
	Sewer Mains	105	No
	Sewer Mains Lining	105	No
Balranald Sewerage – Plant	Effluent Ponds	1	No
	Mechanical/Electrical	7	No
	Preliminary Treatment	1	No
	Structure	7	No
Euston Sewerage – Plant	Effluent Ponds	1	No
	Mechanical/Electrical	3	No
	Preliminary Treatment	1	No
	Sewerage Treatment Site Works	1	No
	Structure	3	No

#### A. 3.2 Asset Values

Sub Group	Class	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
Balranald Sewerage - Sewer Line	Rising Mains	\$954,029	\$500,864
	Sewer Mains	\$2,658,002	\$1,891,485
	Sewer Mains Lining	\$1,972,838	\$1,063,345
Euston Sewerage - Sewer Line	Euston Rising Main 100	\$ 6,515	\$4,374
	Euston Rising Main 80	\$ 41,458	\$ 27,836
	Rising Mains	\$ 877,339	\$594,118
	Sewer Mains	\$944,895	\$ 782,312
	Sewer Mains Lining	\$ 568,065	\$504,341
Balranald Sewerage - Plant	Effluent Ponds	\$236900	\$236.9
	Mechanical/Electrical	\$337000	\$168500
	Preliminary Treatment	\$92700	\$69525
	Structure	\$793000	\$396500
	(blank)	\$816900	\$219061.9
Euston Sewerage - Plant	Effluent Ponds	\$236900	\$177675
	Mechanical/Electrical	\$175000	\$78750
	Preliminary Treatment	\$236900	\$177675
	Sewerage Treatment Site Works	\$92700	\$69525
	Structure	\$295000	\$147500
	(blank)	\$430000	\$243500
Total		\$11,766,140	\$ 7,117,124

#### A. 3.3 Asset Condition

Council has limited condition data for its sewer assets as such asset condition is assumed based on age, which may not be an accurate reflection of the overall asset condition.

Sub Group	Class			Condition Data (	Count by Value	)	
		1	2	3	4	5	NA
Balranald Sewerage - Sewer Line	Rising Mains		0%	100%	0%	0%	
	Sewer Mains		100%	0%	0%	0%	
	Sewer Mains Lining		49%	21%	26%	4%	
Euston Sewerage - Sewer Line	Euston Rising Main 100	0%	100%				
	Euston Rising Main 80	0%	100%				
	Rising Mains	0%	100%				
	Sewer Mains	21%	79%				
	Sewer Mains Lining	92%	8%				
Balranald Sewerage - Plant	Effluent Ponds		0%	0%	0%	100%	
	Mechanical/Electrical		0%	100%	0%	0%	
	Preliminary Treatment		100%	0%	0%	0%	
	Structure		0%	100%	0%	0%	
	(blank)		0%	45%	17%	38%	
Euston Sewerage - Plant	Effluent Ponds	0%	100%	0%	0%	0%	
	Mechanical/Electrical	0%	0%	80%	20%	0%	
	Preliminary Treatment	0%	100%	0%	0%	0%	
	Sewerage Treatment Site Works	0%	100%	0%	0%	0%	
	Structure	0%	0%	100%	0%	0%	
	(blank)	27%	8%	41%	24%	0%	
Total Sewer Line and Plant		7%	51%	30%	7%	5%	

Overall, most of Council's sewer assets are in 'good' condition or condition 3. Councils should monitor piped assets and investigate cost effective condition inspection strategies or sample testing of some major assets.

#### A. 3.4 Asset Based Service Levels

Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service	Performance Measurement Process	Target Performance	Current Performance
	Effluent reuse water quality	Monthly quality testing for licence Conditions	100% compliance	
Quality / Condition	Percent of network inspected by CCTV	CCTV monitoring	5% per year (within five years)	
	Percent of assets in Condition 3 or better	Condition assessment	95%	31%
Reliability / Responsiveness	Percent compliance with Council's documented response time	CRMS data	90%	
Customer Service	Percent satisfaction with service provision	IRIS Community satisfaction report		
	Satisfactory operational performance on Balranald STP	Six monthly report from OEH	To maintain satisfactory performance	
	Consumption ratio		Between 50% and 75%	60%
Sustainability	Renewal funding ratio	Annual depreciation figures and expenditure details	Between 90% and 110%	69%
	Long term funding ratio		Between 95% and 105%	60%
Accessibility	No of properties that are charged sewerage rates not connected to the sewerage system	Connection and rates records	Reduction in number of properties not connected	

## A. 3.5 Expenditure Projections

10 year Budget	Budget	Projected								
Forecast	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Actual										
Renewal	\$657	\$570	\$72	\$145	\$122	\$115	\$252	\$65	\$72	\$65
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Operational	\$22	\$23	\$23	\$24	\$25	\$25	\$26	\$26	\$27	\$27
Maintenance	\$118	\$120	\$123	\$125	\$128	\$131	\$134	\$137	\$140	\$143
Total Expenditure	\$797	\$713	\$218	\$294	\$275	\$271	\$412	\$228	\$239	\$235
Required										
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$152	\$155	\$159	\$162	\$166	\$169	\$173	\$177	\$181	\$185
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Required O&M	\$235	\$240	\$246	\$251	\$257	\$262	\$268	\$274	\$280	\$286
Total	\$387	\$396	\$405	\$413	\$423	\$432	\$441	\$451	\$461	\$471
Overall (GAP)	\$410	\$317	(\$186)	(\$119)	(\$148)	(\$161)	(\$30)	(\$223)	(\$222)	(\$236)







#### A. 3.6 Financial Ratios









### A. 3.7 Funding Strategy

Funding of operations and maintenance and renewal of sewerage assets is from Council's sewerage fund. Expansion / new asset funding is available from the NSW government if improvements to network capacity is required.

#### A. 3.8 Main Findings

Balranald Shire Council runs two sewerage schemes located in Balranald and Euston. The Balranald scheme is the larger of the two and is generally in reasonable condition. There appears to be limited renewal and maintenance funding available which reflected in the non-sustainable renewal and maintenance ratios. The overall shortfall in funding creates an average gap of \$134K per year or \$2.7 million over the ten year term. The shortfall in funding will impact the asset conditions and create backlog overtime. Although at this stage it not critical to review and relocate funding to renewal and maintenance of sewerage assets, it is advisable that in two to three years' time a budget is set for sewerage assets to ensure that optimum consumption of assets can occur.

Expenditure GAP	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Renewal	\$505	\$415	(\$87)	(\$17)	(\$44)	(\$54)	\$79	(\$112)	(\$109)	(\$120)
0&M	(\$95)	(\$97)	(\$100)	(\$102)	(\$104)	(\$106)	(\$109)	(\$111)	(\$113)	(\$116)
Total Gap	\$410	\$317	(\$186)	(\$119)	(\$148)	(\$161)	(\$30)	(\$223)	(\$222)	(\$236)

Condition assessment of the assets appears to be incomplete with the majority of the sewer line assets in unknown condition. An ongoing program of pipe CCTV inspections will give Council a better understanding of the condition of its sewer mains and lines.



#### A. 3.9 Confidence Levels

The confidence in the asset data used as a basis for the financial forecasts has been assessed using the following grading system, see the following table.

Confidence Grade	General Meaning
Highly Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedure, investigations, and analysis that is properly documented and recognised as the best method of assessment
Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is properly documented but has minor shortcomings; for example the data is old, some documentation is missing and reliance is placed on unconfirmed reports or some extrapolation
Uncertain	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is incomplete or unsupported or extrapolation from a limited sample
Very Uncertain	Data based on unconfirmed verbal reports and/or cursory inspection and analysis

The overall confidence level of the plan is considered to be *Uncertain*.



# Appendix 4 Water Assets

### A. 4.1 Asset Inventory

Sub Group	Asset Class	No	Unit
Balranald Water	Filtered Mains	6	No
	Fluoridation Plant Civil Works	1	No
	Fluoridation Plant Mechanical and Elect Works	1	No
	Pump Station Electrical	1	No
	Pump Station Civil Works	3	No
	Pump Station Mechanical and Elect Works	2	No
	Raw Mains	9	No
	Reservoir 1mg	1	No
	Reservoir 2.5mg	1	No
	Reservoir Roof	2	No
	Treatment Plant Civil Works	1	No
	Treatment Plant Electrical Works	1	No
Euston Water	Filtered Mains	5	No
	Intake Structure	1	No
	Pump Station Electrical	1	No
	Pump Station Civil Works	2	No
	Pump Station Mechanical and Elect Works	1	No
	Pump Station Power Supply	1	No
	Raw Mains	5	No
	Raw Rising Main	1	No
	Reservoir .5mg	2	No
	Reservoir Roof	2	No
	Treatment Plant Civil Works	1	No
	Treatment Plant Mechanical and Elect Works	1	No
Other	Filter Banks	1	No
	Intake Structure	2	No
	Pump Station Mechanical (Pumps and Pipework)	2	No
Total		57	No



#### A. 4.2 Asset Values

Sub Group	Class	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
Balranald Water	Filtered Mains	\$1,529,426	\$994,127
	Fluoridation Plant Civil Works	\$113,300	\$101,970
	Fluoridation Plant Mechanical and Elect Works	\$-	\$-
	Pump Station Electrical	\$45,000	\$-
	Pump Station Civil Works	\$120,000	\$72,000
	Pump Station Mechanical and Elect Works	\$-	\$-
	Raw Mains	\$3,381,633	\$1,173,076
	Reservoir 1mg	\$560,000	\$403,200
	Reservoir 2.5mg	\$985,000	\$591,000
	Reservoir Roof	\$273,000	\$29,400
	Treatment Plant Civil Works	\$2,428,000	\$1,456,800
	Treatment Plant Electrical Works	\$250,000	\$16,667
Euston Water	Filtered Mains	\$552,453	\$483,396
	Intake Structure	\$65,000	\$48,750
	Pump Station Electrical	\$45,000	\$7,500
	Pump Station Civil Works	\$90,000	\$67,500
	Pump Station Mechanical and Elect Works	\$-	\$-
	Pump Station Power Supply	\$-	\$-
	Raw Mains	\$619,987	\$272,189
Sub Group	Class	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
-----------	--	--------------------------	--------------------
	Raw Rising Main	\$50,110	\$43,220
	Reservoir .5mg	\$760,000	\$627,000
	Reservoir Roof	\$134,000	\$75,375
	Treatment Plant Civil Works	\$1,696,000	\$1,453,714
	Treatment Plant Mechanical and Elect Works	\$-	\$-
Total		\$14,080,909	\$8,050,159

### A. 4.3 Asset Condition

The asset data below is based on the age of the asset which may not reflect the actual condition of the assets.

	Condition					
Water Supply Network	1	2	3	4	5	
Filter Banks	100%	0%	0%	0%	0%	
Filtered Mains	27%	0%	73%	0%	0%	
Fluoridation Plant Civil Works	100%	0%	0%	0%	0%	
Fluoridation Plant Mech and Elect Works						
Intake Structure	0%	67%	33%	0%	0%	
Pump Station Electrical	0%	0%	0%	50%	50%	
Pump Station Civil Works	0%	43%	57%	0%	0%	
Pump Station Mech and Elect Works						
Pump Station Mechanical (Pumps and Pipework)	0%	0%	0%	0%	100%	



	Condition						
Pump Station Power Supply							
Raw Mains	0%	1%	47%	52%	0%		
Raw Rising Main	100%	0%	0%	0%	0%		
Reservoir .5mg	50%	50%	0%	0%	0%		
Reservoir 1mg	0%	100%	0%	0%	0%		
Reservoir 2.5mg	0%	0%	100%	0%	0%		
Reservoir Roof	0%	16%	0%	41%	43%		
Treatment Plant Civil Works	41%	0%	59%	0%	0%		
Treatment Plant Electrical Works	0%	0%	0%	0%	100%		
Treatment Plant Mechanical and Elect Works							
Grand Total	20%	9%	50%	16%	5%		



### A. 4.4 Asset Based Service Levels

Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service Performance Measurement Pr		Target Performance	Current Performance
	Effluent reuse water quality	Monthly quality testing for licence conditions	100% compliance	NA
Quality / Condition	Percent of network inspected by CCTV	CCTV monitoring	5% per year (within 5 years)	NA
	Percent assets in Condition 3 or better	Condition assessment	95%	43%
Reliability / Responsiveness	Percent compliance with Council's documented response time	CRMS data	90%	NA
Customer Service	Percent satisfaction with service provision	Community satisfaction report	80% satisfaction	NA
	Consumption ratio		Between 50% and 75%	57%
Sustainability	Renewal funding ratio	Annual depreciation figures and expenditure details	Between 90% and 110%	28%
	Long term funding ratio		Between 95% and 105%	27%

## A. 4.5 Expenditure Projections

10 year Budget	Budget	Projected								
Forecast	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Actual										
Renewal	\$375	\$490	\$595	\$495	\$385	\$162	\$162	\$137	\$132	\$144
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Operational	\$143	\$146	\$149	\$152	\$156	\$159	\$162	\$166	\$170	\$173
Maintenance	\$317	\$324	\$331	\$339	\$346	\$354	\$361	\$369	\$378	\$386
Total Expenditure	\$835	\$960	\$1,075	\$986	\$887	\$675	\$686	\$672	\$679	\$703
Required										
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$213	\$218	\$222	\$227	\$232	\$237	\$243	\$248	\$254	\$259
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Required O&M	\$282	\$288	\$294	\$301	\$307	\$314	\$321	\$328	\$335	\$343
Total	\$495	\$506	\$517	\$528	\$540	\$551	\$564	\$576	\$589	\$602
Overall (GAP)	\$340	\$454	\$559	\$458	\$347	\$123	\$122	\$96	\$91	\$102







### A. 4.6 Financial Ratio









### A. 4.7 Funding Strategy

Most of the Council's water supply assets were constructed from government grants; often provided and accepted without consideration of ongoing operations, maintenance and replacement needs.

Many of these assets are approaching the later years of their life and require replacement, services from the assets are decreasing and maintenance costs are increasing.

### A. 4.8 Main Findings

Balranald Shire Council runs two water systems located in Balranald and Euston. Both locations provide raw water and potable water and are generally in reasonable condition.

Based on the expenditure budget, it seems Councils' present funding levels are insufficient to continue to provide existing services at current levels in the medium term. There is an average renewal gap of \$59K in the first year which gradually increases over the ten year term. This can be slightly reduced by the relocating of some maintenance budget to renewals that can reduce this gap. However, a total of \$118K gap will still be present in 2017/18 or \$1.6 million over ten years.

Expenditure GAP	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Renewal	\$162	\$272	\$373	\$268	\$153	(\$75)	(\$81)	(\$111)	(\$122)	(\$115)
0&M	\$178	\$182	\$186	\$190	\$194	\$199	\$203	\$207	\$212	\$217
Total Gap	\$340	\$454	\$559	\$458	\$347	\$123	\$122	\$96	\$91	\$102

Condition assessment of the assets appears to be unreliable as it has been generated through a desktop analysis rather than physical inspection. An ongoing program of pipe CCTV inspections will give Council a better understanding of the condition of its water mains and lines.

### A. 4.9 Confidence Levels

The confidence in the asset data used as a basis for the financial forecasts has been assessed using the following grading system. Refer to the following table.

Confidence Grade	General Meaning
Highly Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedure, investigations, and analysis that is properly documented and recognised as the best method of assessment
Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is properly documented but has minor shortcomings; for example the data is old, some documentation is missing and reliance is placed on unconfirmed reports or some extrapolation
Uncertain	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is incomplete or unsupported or extrapolation from a limited sample
Very Uncertain	Data based on unconfirmed verbal reports and/or cursory inspection and analysis

The overall confidence level of the Plan is considered to be *Uncertain*.



# Appendix 5 Stormwater Assets

### A. 5.1 Asset Inventory

Sub Group	Asset Class	Quantity (No)	Length (m)
Balranald Drainage Pipes	PVC (size 100mm – 200mm)	6	240
	Туре С	25	2,747
	Туре АС	5	240
Drainage Box Culverts	Type C (size 200mm – 450mm)	6	343
Balranald Drainage Spoon Drains	Туре С	9	101
	Type Corr	2	9
Balranald Drainage Open Earth Drains	All types	9	1,150
Balranald Drainage Headwalls and Pits	Туре С	107	NA
Main and other Road Culverts	Туре С	86	879
West Balranald Drainage System	Туре С	8	88
	Туре S	7	3,744
	other	8	4,735

### A. 5.2 Asset Values

Sub Group	Asset Class		Written Down Value
	PVC (size 100mm – 200mm)	\$12,109	\$8,809
Balranald Drainage Pipes	Type C	\$334,403	\$209,895
	Type AC	\$9,598	\$5,550
Drainage Box Culverts	Type C (size 200mm – 450mm)	\$160,438	\$64,175
Relyanded Dysinger Crosse Dysing	Туре С	\$23,207	\$14,566
Bairanaid Drainage Spoon Drains	Type Corr	\$2,070	\$1,208
Balranald Drainage Open Earth Drains	All types	\$3,231	\$1,657
Balranald Drainage Headwalls and Pits	Type C	\$92,480	\$64,891
Main and Other Road Culverts	Type C	\$182,509	\$135,932
	Type C	\$332,100	\$314,816
West Balranald Drainage System	Type S	\$1,329,995	\$1,253,995
	other	\$221,750	\$209,079
Total		\$2,704,171	\$2,229,795



### A. 5.3 Asset Condition

Asset Category	Condition					
	1	2	3	4	5	
Water Supply Network	16%	83%	1%	0%	0%	

From a desktop analysis using the 2015/16 SS7 results, it has been estimated that most assets are in very good condition or condition 2. Although this may seem like a good result, it does not accurately represent the condition of all assets which may have deteriorated due to usage. Physical or CCTV inspection of these assets is recommended which would result in a more accurate condition assessment.



### A. 5.4 Asset Based Service Levels

Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service	Performance Measurement Process	Target Performance	Current Performance
Quality (Condition	Percent of network inspected by CCTV	CCTV monitoring	5% per year (within 5 years)	NA
Quality/ Condition	Percent of assets in Condition 3 or better	Condition assessment	95%	83%
Reliability / responsiveness	Percent compliance with Council's documented response time	CRMS data	90%	NA
Customer Service	Percent satisfaction with service provision	Community satisfaction report	80% satisfaction	NA
	Consumption ratio		Between 50% and 75%	82%
Sustainability	Renewal Funding Ratio	Annual depreciation figures and expenditure details	Between 90% and 110%	0%
	Long term funding ratio		Between 95% and 105%	0%

### A. 5.5 Expenditure Projections

10 year Budget	Budget	Projected								
Forecast	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Actual										
Renewal	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Operational	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Maintenance	\$9	\$9	\$9	\$10	\$10	\$10	\$10	\$10	\$11	\$11
Total Expenditure	\$9	\$9	\$9	\$10	\$10	\$10	\$10	\$10	\$11	\$11
Required										
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$34	\$35	\$36	\$36	\$37	\$38	\$39	\$40	\$40	\$41
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Required O&M	\$54	\$55	\$56	\$58	\$59	\$60	\$62	\$63	\$64	\$66
Total	\$88	\$90	\$92	\$94	\$96	\$98	\$100	\$103	\$105	\$107
Overall (GAP)	(\$79)	(\$81)	(\$83)	(\$84)	(\$86)	(\$88)	(\$90)	(\$92)	(\$94)	(\$96)





#### © Morrison Low



### A. 5.6 Financial Ratios









### A. 5.7 Funding Strategy

Most of the Council's water supply assets were constructed from Council revenue and government grants, where available.

Many of these assets are approaching the later years of their life and require replacement, services from the assets are decreasing and maintenance costs are increasing.

Councils' present funding levels are insufficient to continue to provide existing services at current levels in the medium term.

### A. 5.8 Main Findings

Stormwater assets have current replacement cost of \$2.7 million, or make up 1.7% of the total asset replacement value of Balranald Shire Council. Reviewing the expenditure budget, it appears there is insufficient funding allocated for renewal, operations and maintenance of storm water assets. This is reflected through the 0% renewals ratio which increases backlog over the ten year period. The shortfall in funding creates a gap of approximately \$79K in first year which can increase to \$1.6 million over the ten year term, subject to no change.

Expenditure GAP	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Renewal	(\$34)	(\$35)	(\$36)	(\$36)	(\$37)	(\$38)	(\$39)	(\$40)	(\$40)	(\$41)
0&M	(\$45)	(\$46)	(\$47)	(\$48)	(\$49)	(\$50)	(\$51)	(\$52)	(\$54)	(\$55)
Total Gap	(\$79)	(\$81)	(\$83)	(\$84)	(\$86)	(\$88)	(\$90)	(\$92)	(\$94)	(\$96)

Condition assessment of the assets appears to be unreliable as it has been generated through a desktop analysis, rather than physical inspection. An ongoing program of pipe CCTV inspections will give Council a better understanding of the condition of its water mains and lines.

### A. 5.9 Confidence Levels

The confidence in the asset data used as a basis for the financial forecasts has been assessed using the following grading system, see the following table.

Confidence Grade	General Meaning
Highly Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedure, investigations, and analysis that is properly documented and recognised as the best method of assessment
Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is properly documented but has minor shortcomings; for example the data is old, some documentation is missing and reliance is placed on unconfirmed reports or some extrapolation
Uncertain	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is incomplete or unsupported or extrapolation from a limited sample
Very Uncertain	Data based on unconfirmed verbal reports and/or cursory inspection and analysis

The overall confidence level of the Plan is considered to be Uncertain.



# Appendix 6 Open Space and Recreation Assets

### A. 6.1 Asset Inventory

Asset	Quantity	Unit
Parks, Gardens and Reserves	14	No
Furniture and Fittings	70	No
Swimming Pool	3	No

### A. 6.2 Asset Values

Asset	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
Parks, Gardens and Reserves	\$567,760	\$567,760
Furniture and Fittings	\$219,540	\$53,161
Swimming Pool	\$1,480,094	\$690,831
Operating Land	\$1,456,406	\$1,456,406
Total	\$3,723,800	\$2,768,158

### A. 6.3 Asset Condition

Asset Class	Condition Data (% by Value)				
	1	2	3	4	5
Parks, Gardens and Reserves			NA		
Furniture and Fittings			NA		
Swimming Pool	10%	40%	46%	0%	4%

### A. 6.4 Asset Based Service Levels

Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service	Performance Measurement Process	Target Performance	Current Performance
	Reduction in priority 1 defects for playground equipment	Annual inspection program	Less than 5% defects	NA
Quality / Condition	Reduction in parks defects	1/4ly inspection program in reflect	Less than 10% defects	NA
	Percent of assets in condition 3 or better	Condition Assessment	95%	46% approx.
Reliability / responsiveness	Percent compliance with Council's documented response time	CRMS data	90%	NA
Customer Service	Percent satisfaction with service provision	Community satisfaction report	Achieve 80% satisfaction	NA
	Average weekly attendance at aquatic centre.	Contractor admission records	75% capacity	NA
	Three year rolling average potable water consumption on parks and gardens	Water records	Reduction of 3% per year	NA
Sustainability	Consumption ratio		Between 50% and 75%	47%
	Renewal Funding Ratio	Annual depreciation figures and expenditure details	Between 90% and 110%	35%
	Long term funding ratio		Between 95% and 105%	189%
Affordability	Cost /ha to maintain open space assets	Annual budget expenditure	Increase by 1% lower than CPI	

## A. 6.5 Expenditure Projections

10 year Budget	Budget	Projected								
Forecast	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Actual										
Renewal	\$19	\$19	\$20	\$20	\$21	\$21	\$22	\$22	\$23	\$23
New and Expanded Assets	\$144	\$147	\$150	\$154	\$157	\$161	\$164	\$168	\$171	\$175
Operational	\$27	\$28	\$28	\$29	\$29	\$30	\$31	\$31	\$32	\$33
Maintenance	\$279	\$285	\$291	\$298	\$304	\$311	\$318	\$325	\$332	\$339
Total Expenditure	\$469	\$479	\$490	\$501	\$512	\$523	\$534	\$546	\$558	\$570
Required										
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$55	\$58	\$61	\$64	\$67	\$70	\$73	\$77	\$80	\$84
New and Expanded Assets	\$144	\$147	\$150	\$154	\$157	\$161	\$164	\$168	\$171	\$175
Required O&M	\$148	\$166	\$184	\$203	\$223	\$244	\$265	\$287	\$310	\$334
Total	\$347	\$371	\$395	\$420	\$447	\$474	\$502	\$532	\$562	\$593
Overall (GAP)	\$122	\$109	\$95	\$80	\$65	\$49	\$32	\$15	(\$4)	(\$23)







### A. 6.6 Financial Ratios









### A. 6.7 Funding Strategy

Most of the Council's recreational assets were constructed from Council revenue and government grants, where available. These assets are often provided and accepted without consideration of ongoing operations, maintenance and replacement needs.

Restoration work on assets required as a result of work on the asset by another organisation is undertaken when fully funded by that organisation.

Funding of new works is by Council general funds as agreed by Council, supplemented by federal and state government grants, where available.

### A. 6.8 Main Findings

Council has a range of open space and recreation assets. Most of the parks and open space assets are in unknown condition with only swimming pools noted to have known condition. The largest expenditure for open space and recreation assets is the maintenance cost which consumes a large portion of the parks budget. Typically parks assets are funded from grant applications and or community groups and rather than asset renewal a significant program of asset replacement is carried out as assets meet there service life.

Council has not allocated any renewal funding for its parks and recreation assets. The majority of these assets are replaced as they fail rather than undertaking an asset renewal type approach. This funding scenario best reflects how this asset group is managed at the current time. It should be noted however that building assets generally located in parks have been included in the buildings section of this asset management plan and strategy.



### A. 6.9 Confidence Levels

The confidence in the asset data used as a basis for the financial forecasts has been assessed using the following grading system, see the following table.

Confidence Grade	General Meaning
Highly Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedure, investigations, and analysis that is properly documented and recognised as the best method of assessment
Reliable	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is properly documented but has minor shortcomings; for example the data is old, some documentation is missing and reliance is placed on unconfirmed reports or some extrapolation
Uncertain	Data based on sound records, procedures, investigations and analysis which is incomplete or unsupported or extrapolation from a limited sample
Very Uncertain	Data based on unconfirmed verbal reports and/or cursory inspection and analysis

The overall confidence level of the Plan is considered to be Uncertain.



# Appendix 7 Other Assets (Waste)

### A. 7.1 Asset Inventory

Asset	Quantity	Unit
Operating Land	34	No
Infrastructure and other Structure	138	No

### A. 7.2 Asset Values

	Current Replacement Cost	Written Down Value
Operating Land	\$1,456,406	\$1,456,406
Infrastructure and other Structure	\$13,171,842	\$7,491,466
Total		

### A. 7.3 Asset Condition

Asset Class	Condition Data (% by Value)					
	1	2	3	4	5	
Operating Land			NA			
Infrastructure and other Structure	5%	42%	43%	10%	0%	

### A. 7.4 Asset Based Service Levels

Key Performance Indicator	Level of Service	Performance Measurement Process	Target Performance	Current Performance
Quality / Condition	Reduction in priority 1 defects for playground equipment	Annual inspection program	Less than 10% priority 1 defects	NA
	Precent of assets in condition 3 or better	Condition assessment	95%	Approx. 43%
Reliability / Responsiveness	Precent compliance with Council's documented response time	CRMS data	90%	NA
Customer Service	Percent satisfaction with service provision	Community satisfaction report	Maintain	
	Consumption ratio		Between 50% and 75%	83%
Sustainability	Renewal funding ratio	Annual depreciation figures and expenditure details	Between 90% and 110%	0%
	Long term funding ratio		Between 95% and 105%	0%

### A. 7.5 Expenditure Projections

10 year Budget	Budget	Projected								
Forecast	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27
Actual										
Renewal	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Operational	\$84	\$86	\$88	\$90	\$92	\$94	\$96	\$98	\$100	\$103
Maintenance	\$3	\$3	\$3	\$3	\$3	\$3	\$3	\$3	\$3	\$3
Total Expenditure	\$87	\$89	\$91	\$93	\$95	\$97	\$99	\$101	\$103	\$106
Required										
Required Renewal (Depreciation)	\$185	\$189	\$193	\$197	\$202	\$206	\$211	\$215	\$220	\$225
New and Expanded Assets	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Required O&M	\$181	\$185	\$189	\$193	\$198	\$202	\$206	\$211	\$216	\$220
Total	\$366	\$374	\$382	\$391	\$399	\$408	\$417	\$426	\$436	\$445
Overall (GAP)	(\$279)	(\$285)	(\$292)	(\$298)	(\$305)	(\$311)	(\$318)	(\$325)	(\$332)	(\$340)





#### © Morrison Low



### A. 7.6 Financial Ratios









### A. 7.7 Funding Strategy

Funding of operations and maintenance is from Council's general fund, supplemented by federal and state government grants where available.

Restoration work on assets required as a result of work on the asset by another organisation is undertaken when fully funded by that organisation.

Funding of new works is by Council general funds as agreed by Council, supplemented by federal and state government grants where available.

#### A. 7.8 Main Findings

Council has not allocated any renewal funding for its waste and other assets which is apparent in the renewals ratio and increasing backlog. With the current budget allocations, there appears to be a funding gap of \$364k for 2017/18.

Expenditure Gap	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	10 Year Total
Renewal	(\$185)	(\$189)	(\$193)	(\$197)	(\$202)	(\$206)	(\$211)	(\$215)	(\$220)	(\$225)	(\$2,044)
0&M	(\$94)	(\$96)	(\$98)	(\$101)	(\$103)	(\$105)	(\$107)	(\$110)	(\$112)	(\$115)	(\$1,042)
Total Gap	(\$279)	(\$285)	(\$292)	(\$298)	(\$305)	(\$311)	(\$318)	(\$325)	(\$332)	(\$340)	(\$3,086)

The majority of these assets are replaced as they fail rather than undertaking an asset renewal type approach. As such, it is recommended that Council continues to monitor and review waste and other assets regularly and allocate funds for replacement as necessary.

## Appendix 8 Asset Management Improvement Plan

The asset management improvement program is directly linked to the NSW Division of Local Government Infrastructure Audit, and improvement tasks are broken down into the various categories utilised in that reporting and in the associated gap analysis.

### A. 8.1 Asset Knowledge

Asset Knowledge/Data	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
Physical attributes and location	Review and collect required asset location and attribute data for all assets with target 98% coverage and 95% confidence with data across all assets	Database of asset data with acceptable coverage and confidence levels	Identify missing or incomplete data		Medium
Physical attributes and location	Collect base level data for all outstanding asset classes Minimum attribute data only	Completed asset database	Verification of asset data		Medium
Physical attributes and location	Collect information of missing assets	Completed asset database	Collecting information on existing assets and loading it on to database		Medium
Operational / maintenance data	Identify activity types so that costs can be allocated against individual assets in all asset classes	List of activity types	Workshop to be arranged to determine activity list acceptable to group		High
Condition data	Develop a program of ongoing asset condition assessment for all asset classes	Details time line of asset inspections	Develop condition collection strategy for all asset classes		High
Performance utilisation data	Decide on what utilisation data is required for major assets and arrange to collect the data as required	Corporate policy and procedure for performance and utilisation data collection, used to prepare procedures defining data to be recorded and frequency for each asset class by asset owners	Identify data to be recorded Review data already recorded and fill gaps		Medium
Performance utilisation data	Collect and record performance data for all assets against defined service/ performance criteria	Performance data for all assets	Identify data to be recorded. Review data already recorded and fill gaps		Medium



Asset Knowledge/Data	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
GIS / spatial data	Review, collect and record location and attribute data in spatial system for major assets	All assets identified in GIS	Spatial data to be collected		Medium
Lifecycle cost data	Develop guidelines as to how lifecycle costs will be recorded and measured on an ongoing basis	Procedure on lifecycle costing to be used by organisation	Examine the structure of the cost ledger to determine the most appropriate structure to obtain usable data		Medium
Lifecycle cost data	Record and manage operations and maintenance work type and cost data	Detailed lifecycle cost data for all asset classes	Manage asset data effectively		Medium
Lifecycle cost data	Review the existing cost ledger to ensure that asset information and lifecycle cost data is easily collected and is made available	Cost ledger that supports asset management reporting	Review the cost ledger with finance staff		Medium
Valuation, depreciation and effective life data	Document the process and assumptions around the valuation and depreciation of all assets classes	Ongoing as part of valuation exercise.	Ongoing as part of valuation exercise		High
Valuation, depreciation and effective life data	Review the existing road and building valuation process and ensure that accurate asset valuations are being undertaken	Reliable road and building asset valuations	Review road and building data		Low



### A. 8.2 Asset Data Processes

Data processes / techniques	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
Data capture strategies and processes	Review, develop and implement data capture strategy, guidelines and processes including collection frequency and guidelines/ processes for data collection/ asset representation in spatial format	Procedure for data capture for all asset classes and types and all types of data	Review existing procedure for the capture of data for new assets and use as basis for overall procedure		High
Condition assessment processes / rating systems	Document the existing condition rating system within Council and provide guidelines to how assets are condition rated in each asset class	Corporate policy and procedure for condition rating, used to prepare condition ratings for each asset class by asset owners	Document a common condition rating matrix		High
Performance utilisation processes	Identify what performance and utilisation measures are appropriate for each asset class and document how this information will be collected	Corporate policy and procedure for performance and utilisation measures, used to prepare specific measures for each asset class by asset owners	Review existing practices within organisation and use as basis for corporate procedure		Medium
Asset GIS mapping systems	Document the process for linking assets in the GIS to the AM system	Procedure for linking assets in GIS to AM system	Use the existing flow of data procedure as the basis for corporate procedure Procedure to include for maintaining database		Medium



### A. 8.3 Asset Strategy

Strategic Asset Planning Processes	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
Levels of service	Ensure all levels of service are measurable and monitored	Measurable service levels	Report on service delivery for assets		High
Risk management	Develop and implement risk analysis/ assessment processes for asset management, asset operations/ maintenance management and capital works planning/ evaluation	Asset related risks identification methodology developed	Document the asset based risk assessment process		Medium
Risk management	Undertake risk analysis/assessment and develop risk registers for all assets and implement risk management systems and processes for critical/major assets	Asset related risk register	Undertake risk assessment		Medium
Optimised decision making / predictive modelling	Council should continue to update and calibrate its decision-making tools to ensure long term asset requirements	Optimised decision making reports	Develop optimised decision making tools		Low
Lifecycle planning and funding projections	Develop lifecycle planning/costing guidelines and processes. Ensure clear understanding of lifecycle activities and applications. Undertake lifecycle planning for all major assets and develop robust long term financial forecasts	Funding projections and life cycle costing models	Detailed analysis of asset funding requirements		High
Financial planning and capital investment	Develop robust long term financial strategy/ forecasts for all assets including funding/ revenue forecasts	Long term financial forecast	Work with finance staff to fully integrate asset expenditure requirements into the LTFP		High
Financial planning and capital investment	Long term financial forecasts for assets to be reviewed on an annual basis	Long term financial forecast	Review asset expenditure projections		High



Strategic Asset Planning Processes	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
Asset capital processes	A capital works prioritisation model be developed to help prioritise capital works projects	Capital works prioritisation model	Develop prioritisation methodology		Medium
Asset management plans	Asset management plan to be reviewed for all major asset classes on an annual basis	Asset management plan covering al key infrastructure asset groups	Review and update asset management plans		Low
Asset management plans	Asset management strategy to undergo a minor review every two years and a major review every four years with the development of Council's Delivery Plan	Plans reviewed and adopted	Review and update asset management strategy		Low

### A. 8.4 Asset Operations and Maintenance

Operations Maintenance and Work Processes	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
Emergency response plans	Identify critical assets and develop basic emergency management/response plans	Critical asset register	Identify factors that will make assets critical and identify critical assets		High
Contract administration	Identify opportunities for developing supply contracts that will enhance and productivity and performance improvement in works delivery	Improved supply agreements and improved value for money	Review existing supply contracts		Low
Critical assets	Identify critical assets and develop basic emergency management/response plans	a) Overall policy regarding the identification of critical assets. b) Identification of critical assets for each asset class	Review current assessment of critical assets in all asset classes		High
Critical assets	Undertake risk analysis/assessment for all assets and implement risk management systems and processes including condition monitoring/ inspection systems for critical/ major assets	Risk register	Undertake risk assessments		High
## A. 8.5 Asset Information Systems

Information Systems	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
Asset register	Review AMIS. Review and rationalise asset registers/ databases. Complete organisation review/upgrade of systems considering business requirements	Audit of existing asset registers. Documented organisational system requirements	udit of existing asset registers. ocumented organisational ystem requirements		High
Asset costing systems	Review the existing cost ledger to ensure that asset information and lifecycle cost data is easily collected and is made available	Improved cost ledger that deals with assets in an appropriate manner	Review existing cost ledger and document asset requirements with finance staff		Low
Works / maintenance management	Develop links between AM&M systems and corporate systems	Systems information plan for asset management	Review existing systems		Medium
Works / maintenance management	Implement a works order system that supports improved works management and better asset management planning	Implementation of works order system	Identify works management, systems and asset requirements for works order systems		Medium
GIS	Increase utilisation of spatial system for asset data and information for all assets down to asset component level as appropriate	All assets have layers available in GIS	Link all asset to the GIS system		Medium
Asset management system / modules	Develop and implement asset rationalisation guidelines and processes for all assets. Include asset rationalisation consideration in asset lifecycle planning	Rationalisation guidelines	Review exiting assets needs and community expectations		Medium
Systems integration	Review system requirements/ capabilities as part of systems review with a view to maximising integration/ interfacing capability for sharing/ transfer of data and information	Systems information plan for asset management	Map out and plan the existing system and data processes and document		Medium
Systems integration	Review depreciation and capitalisation processes to ensure full reconciliation between the asset management systems and the corporate finance system	Documented processes for valuation and capitalisation of all assets	Review current valuation requirements and document the organisational needs		Medium

## A. 8.6 Corporate / Organisational Commitment

Organisational /Commercial Context	Activity	Deliverables	Actions	Responsibility	Priority
Organisational strategy	Review corporate/organisation strategies and enhance AM focus as opportunities arise. Include AM focus in long term vision/strategies	Asset management strategy a key focus in Council's corporate management plans	Ensure that asset management plays an important part in all organisational strategies		Medium
Organisational strategy	ional strategy Review AM policy Asset management g strategy adopted. Asset management g strategy adopted		Review AM Policy on annual basis		Medium
Organisational strategy	Increase corporate commitment to asset management including infrastructure renewal focus and financial strategies and programs	Improved understanding of asset management within the organisation	Ensure that asset management plays an important part in all organisational strategies		Medium
Asset management review / improvement	Develop AM status reporting processes for reporting to management, corporate team and Council	Reporting and monitoring plan developed	Regularly report on asset performance to the executive and/or Council		High
Commercial tactics	Develop and implement basic asset management benchmarking processes including industry and local regional council benchmarking	Participation in benchmarking programs	Determine the organisational benchmarking requirements		Low
Commercial tactics	Develop monitoring program for output in maintenance and construction works	Scheduled maintenance works to be carried out by works orders	Monitor asset performance		Medium
Corporate sponsorship / commitment	Ensure asset management has a strong corporate focus and support. Engage corporate team in asset management development. Inform and educate councillors about asset management	Improved awareness or asset management within the organisation	Ensure that asset management plays an important part in all organisational activities		Medium
Training and awareness	AM awareness programs developed and implemented for all staff and councillors	Training program and plan developed	Implement training program		Low

## Appendix 9 IP&R Compliance Checklist

	Requirement	Reference	Yes	Partial	No	N/A	Link to evidence/examples	
Asset Management Planning (AM)								
2.16	Council has accounted for and planned for all existing assets and any new asset solutions proposed in CSP and delivery program	EE - 2.9	✓				All assets are accounted for in Special Schedule 7 of Council's Annual Statements of Accounts	
2.17	AM exists to support the CSP and delivery program	EE - 2.10	$\checkmark$					
2.18	AM plan/s exist to support the CSP and delivery program	EE - 2.10	✓				A combined asset management plan and strategy has been developed for all major infrastructure assets and take into account the objectives and strategies defined in the Community Strategic plan and Council's Delivery Plan	
2.19	Asset management strategy and plan/s have a minimum 10 year timeframe	EE - 2.11	$\checkmark$				The AM strategy AMPs and LTFP cover a period of ten years	
2.20	AM strategy includes a council endorsed AM policy	EE - 2.12	$\checkmark$				The Council's AM Policy is detailed in section 1.3 of this report and the AM Policy, endorsed by Council in February 2017	
2.21	AM strategy identifies assets critical to Council's operations, and outlines risk management strategies for these assets	EE – 2.13	✓				Critical assets have been identified in the asset management strategy at section 5.1	
2.22	AM strategy includes specific actions required to improve AM capability and projected resource requirements and timeframes	EE - 2.14	✓				Asset management improvement plan is included as part of this strategy (section 4.4 and Appendix 8)	



	Requirement	Reference	Yes	Partial	No	N/A	Link to evidence/examples	
Asset Ma	Asset Management Planning (AM)							
2.23	AM plan/s encompass all assets under council's control	EE - 2.15	✓				Asset management plan encompasses for all major infrastructure assets. Asset management plans for minor assets will be completed as required	
2.24	AM plan/s identify asset service standards	EE - 2.16	✓				Levels of Service for all assets have been included in the asset management plan in appendices 1 – 7 for each individual asset class)	
2.25	AM plan/s contain long-term projections of asset maintenance, rehabilitation and replacement costs	EE - 2.17	✓				Long term asset expenditure requirements are included in the individual asset sections of the plan and outstanding maintenance requirements included as part of Special Schedule 7 of the Statements of Accounts	
2.26	Condition of assets is reported in annual financial statements	EE - 2.18	✓				Asset condition for each asset class is detailed in the individual asset data sections at Appendices 1 – 7 of this plan. Also Special Schedule 7 of the Statements of Accounts also shows the condition of assets. Where condition is unknown a plan exists to fill the gaps in knowledge as part of the asset management improvement plan	